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_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

November 18, 2021– 2:00 p.m. 
Via Zoom Tele or Video Conference Only 

Call to Order: 2:01 PM 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call (Closed Session)  

 

All Members and public participated by Zoom Video or Conference Call 
 

2. Public Comment 
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. If 
there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those 
submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting. 
If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made 
or questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Board's general policy is to refer items 
to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public 
discussion and input at that time. Speakers may also submit comments via email prior to the meeting by sending those 
comments to rethinker@rethinkwaste.org. . 
 
None 
 
3. Adjourn to Closed Session:  

Pursuant to Government Code Section § 54957– Public Employee performance evaluation – Executive 
Director.  Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code Section §54957.6); Agency Designated 
Representative: Jean B. Savaree; Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 

 
4. Call to Order/Roll Call (Public Meeting) 
Call to Order: 2:40PM 

 

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent 

Belmont X  Redwood City X  
Burlingame X  San Carlos X  
East Palo Alto X  San Mateo X  
Foster City X  County of San Mateo  X 
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary District X  
Menlo Park X  

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent 

Belmont X  Redwood City X  
Burlingame X  San Carlos X  
East Palo Alto X  San Mateo X  
Foster City X  County of San Mateo  X 
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary District X  
Menlo Park X  

mailto:rethinker@rethinkwaste.org
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5. Public Comment (Public Meeting) 
 
None 
 
6. Executive Director’s Report 
 
Executive Director La Mariana welcomed everyone to the meeting and gave the following updates: 
Personnel updates: 

• Grant Ligon left the agency on October 29, he apologized for not mentioning his resignation at the 
October study session when Staff Ligon was still here and acknowledged Grant’s  time with the Agency. 

• Roxanne Murray has retired from the City of San Mateo.  Executive Director La Mariana acknowledged 
that he has worked with Roxanne in the industry for well over 20 years and she recently served as our 
TAC Chair for the last 2 years.  He thanked her for her service and wished her well on her retirement. 

• He acknowledged a nice note from RethinkWaste Fellow Nadia Thompson who recently moved on in 
her career. This letter was included in this agenda packet’s Executive Director’s report. 

• Lastly, he noted that Recology had advised him about two months ago that there would be a change at 
the General Manager position at Recology San Mateo. He hasn’t seen any results from the recruitment 
but noted that it is a condition of the Franchise Agreements that the top candidates get presented to the 
Executive Director and the Board Chair to see if the candidate is a suitable fit, so we are waiting to hear 
from Recology on that front. 

Member Agency Updates: 
• Amendment One to the Franchise Agreements has now been passed by every member agency’s 

elected body, so there is now 100% participation in the Bulky Item Collection/Abandoned Waste 
additional route that will begin in FY2022 (adding a 4th route). 

• Belmont was the final Member Agency to approve Amendment One last week but made a note that, 
because of their unique compensation structure as outlined in the Franchise Agreement in Section 11, if 
there are future decisions like this that are made at the SBWMA Board level, Belmont’s representative 
will need to go back to their elected council for final approval. 

• The Member Agencies have been hosting public SB1383 Study Sessions, as well as first and second 
readings of the SB1383 ordinance.  Through the ordinance, member agencies delegate a series of six 
important technical SB1383 compliance tasks to the SBWMA. 

• He thanked the County’s Office of Sustainability for their work on the Edible Food Recovery Ordinances 
that are also now being considered by all of the Member Agency’s elected councils.  He noted San 
Mateo County has a unique set up to manage the SB1383 mandates around edible food recovery, which 
is not the norm throughout the state, and was grateful to the County for their support of that program. 

RFP/RFQ Updates: 
• The Operations Agreement RFQ/RFP had a very successful mandatory site tour for prospective bidders 

on October 27.  There were 30 attendees and they represented 16 different companies.  A few of those 
companies have asked for additional observational time, so he would be reaching out to make those 
arrangements. 

• The deadline for potential proposers to submit questions was November 2, and the answers to those 
questions are due to be posted tomorrow. 

• He noted that due to the Management Analyst vacancy there will likely be an item on the January 
agenda to amend HF&H’s contract to take on some of the Operations RFQ/RFP work that would have 
been assigned to the Management Analyst. 

• The SB1383 Additional Services RFP closes tomorrow, and staff has already received some responses. 
The contract will be for field auditing, the waiver management, and some required outreach. 

Shoreway Projects called out by the Local Law Enforcement Agency (LEA): 
• At the September meeting the Board gave authorization to enter into a contract for up to $300,000 for 
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floor repair, we are just waiting on the performance bond from the contractor to finalize that contract and 
schedule the work, and it should be completed by the end of the year.  

• In late August, a RFP was issued for the MRF wall repair, but no bids were received.  Staff has gotten a 
number of recommendations from construction industry experts as to why there were no responses and 
is working towards a resolution or alternate plan.  But the LEA has called this out and if it’s not fixed it 
could be a serious violation down the road which could jeopardize our facility’s operating permit status. 

•  
Vice Chair Bonilla asked if the damage to the wall was structural. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana answered that it has not been deemed as affecting the structural integrity of the 
building.  He explained that there's so much material that comes into the facility quite regularly now, that it goes 
up over the MRF’s 12-foot concrete push wall.  Over time this material has become lodged behind that wall and 
in between that wall and the actual exterior wall of the building. So, now the debris that has gotten stuck between 
the wall and the exterior wall is pushing the exterior wall out. It is aesthetic, but it’s also a bigger issue. 
 
Lastly, he noted that the Education Program is back to a full schedule, most programing is still virtual, but some 
is in person.  The education team just put on a series of Rethink Recycling Day events that were attended by 
about 100 people, and the fall poster contest is coming to a close.  He also noted he spoke at the National 
Recycling Congress on November 3, where he a subject matter expert in the battery safety/fire safety around 
batteries discussion topic. 
 
He then went over the upcoming important calendar dates: 
*Zero Waste Committee December 16, at 2PM 
*Next year on January 27 will be the first Board Meeting of 2022 at 2PM 
*On February 24, from 1-5PM we will have our 2nd Annual Board retreat. 
 
7. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
on these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items 
removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 
A. Approval of the Minutes from the September 9, 2021 , Board of Directors/TAC Study Session 
B. Approval of the Minutes from the September 30, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting 
C. Approval of the Minutes from the October 21, 2021 Board of Directors Study Session 
D. Approval of a 2022 SBWMA Board Meeting Calendar 
E. Resolution Consenting to Change of Control from Zanker Road Resources Management LTD to MIP V 

Waste. LLC, As Related to the Agreement for Construction and Demolition Debris Processing Services 
Between Zanker Road Resource Management LTD and SBWMA  

F. Resolution Directing that all meetings of the SBWMA Board of Directors, Technical Advisory Committee 
and all Board Appointed Subcommittees will continue to be held via teleconference Pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 54953(e) 
 

Motion/Second: Froomin/Rak 
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-1 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    
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8. Administration and Finance 
A. Resolution Approving of FY 2022 Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan 

Staff Mangini gave an overview of the revised budget presentation, noting that there were only minor changes 
from the presentation at the October study session. The only change made was to add an expense for material 
sampling at the facility required by SB 1383 for $210,000. Which brings the net revenue and expense to just over 
$1 million. He also noted that this budget still meets the bond covenant ratios – 1:4. There were also a couple 
minor changes to the language, not the numbers. The senior program manager position was missing from the 
salary schedule, so that position was added.   
 
Member Hurt commented that at the state level there are reports of record consumption and online purchases.  
She noticed that the budget shows a reduction in disposal and processing expenses because of a reduction in 
volume, but tip fees are increasing, and she thought those were disconnected.  She asked what was driving cost 
increases, and how are there tonnage decreases in the face of statewide record consumption. 
 
Staff Mangini answered that, in terms of SBR compensation, those reductions are mainly driven by volume.  The 
mid-year 2021 budget had projected volumes to come back up knowing that vaccines were being rolled out with 
an expected return to normalcy, but that volume just hasn’t come back yet. So, he used more current volumes to 
project what the expenses will be.  SBR’s compensation and disposal expense are all driven by volume and then 
the price per ton.  If volume does come back adjustments can be made at midyear.  The volume ties to both 
revenue and expense, if we have the volume, we have the revenue. If we don’t have the volume, we don’t have 
the expense, so they track closely. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana added that the residential sector remains stable after a surge in residential tons 
early in the pandemic.  Commercial sector tons remain down about 15% of pre-pandemic levels.  While there are 
variables in volume which ties to revenue and expense there are also fixed costs.  It is those fixed costs that are 
reflected in the recommendation to adjust tip fees upward to meet those fixed cost obligations. 
 
Member Hurt expressed concern over the continually rising tip fees. 
 
Motion/Second: Bonilla/Froomin 
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-1 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
9. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance 

No Items 
 

10. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management 
A. Hearing on South Bay Recycling’s Request for Compensation Adjustment Based On Special 

Circumstances 
 
Executive Director La Mariana gave background summary noting that SBR’s Long Haul fleet of 23 big rigs and 
some other trucks that are related to heavy equipment need to be replaced because the law has changed and 
now require a new fleet of cleaner burning engines. Due to the odd situation where this new law goes into effect 
one year from the end of the current operations agreement, it didn’t allow SBR enough contract years to 
depreciate new equipment.  Staff and SBR have worked together to come up with a path forward with approval 
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of this recommendation SBR will be able to recoup one year of depreciation of the new fleet at a cost of 
$423,913.30 which will allow SBR to be in compliance with the law but does not commit the agency to the cost of 
the vehicles beyond the first year. 
 
Member Rak asked-if the next Operating Agreement contract is not awarded to SBR is the Agency at risk with a 
new contractor of not being in compliance with the law. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana answered no, because there is a requirement in the RFP that the proposed fleet 
comply with this law. 
 
Member Brownrigg thanked SBR and staff for working together to solve this issue. 
 
Motion/Second: Bonilla/Brownrigg 
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-1 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
11. Public Education and Outreach 

A. Resolution Approving Endorsement of the California Recycling and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act 
 
Staff Au gave an overview of the ballot measure, noting that this legislation will create a comprehensive 
framework to reduce single use non-recyclable plastic products and packaging. It'll develop a more circular 
economy to recycle what plastic is made, while also using more recycled content. It will establish a one cent fee 
on plastic producers for each of their products or packaging and will generate funds for programs and activities 
intended to reduce waste and increase recycling.  The funds generated will be distributed between Cal Recycle, 
the Natural Resources Agency, and local governments.  She added that the Legislative Committee unanimously 
voted to recommend endorsement to the full board at their September meeting. 
 
Member Brownrigg commented that he has gone to the website to endorse this ballot measure individually, he 
encouraged others to do so as they make up their minds on the issue.  He noted that this is an initiative that in 
has enormous public favor with residents but will also elicit enormous industry resistance.  The petrochemical 
industry hasn’t come out against this issue yet, but they will.  He thought this was a great environmental and 
social initiative that will also help the Agency run more effectively. 
 
Motion/Second: Brownrigg/Rak 
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-1 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
B. 2021 Legislative Session Recap 

 
Staff Au introduced Reed Addis, principal at Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC). 
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Reed Addis gave a PowerPoint presentation recapping the 2020-2021 legislative session. 
 
There was no questions or discussion from Board Members or public attendees. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana acknowledged EEC, the Legislative Committee and Staff Au for all of their work in 
this area this year.  He noted that staff will be working with the Legislative Committee and other elected officials 
throughout the state to bring a battery bill back to the legislature.   
 
Member Abrica absent at 3:17PM 
Member Taylor absent at 3:28PM 
Member Hurt absent at 3:50PM 
 

C. Update on Recycling – What is and is not Recycled and Why 
 
Staff Rosales-Jose gave a PowerPoint presentation on the status of recycling.  She noted that the board 
received a comment from a resident interested in an update on the status of recycling, and the last written 
recycling update to the board was in September 2019.  So that is why this was an agenda item at today’s 
meeting.  She gave an update as to where all the materials accepted in the blue bin go to be recycled.  Plastics 
3-7 currently have no market and end up at the landfill.  She also noted that there is a historically significant 
disruption in fiber recycling due to the international shipping delays and supply chain issues, but SBR continues 
to be a great partner and is able to continue to move this material.  She then gave an update on RethinkWaste’ s 
public education and outreach efforts in this area because it can be confusing.  She noted that Recology is 
contractually bound to accept plastics labeled 3-7 in the blue bin, because of this staff focuses outreach on 
reduction and reuse.   
 
Member Brownrigg commented that he would like to see the Agency independently audit where the shipments to 
Asia go.  He acknowledged that SBR tries to do this to some degree but thought the Agency may be in danger of 
looking the other way, so having an independent audit would be a way to assure residents that what we say is 
recycled. 
 
Dan Domonoske of SBR noted that Potential Industries (SBR’s part owner) markets paper and fiber recycling to 
Southeast Asia.  He gave an open invitation for any independent company or board member to go to Asia and 
see firsthand how the fiber material is received and recycled.  He noted that they are selective about who they 
market to and don’t market some materials that others do because they don’t comply with the Basel Convention.  
He added that he would check with staff to see what the level of interest is. 
 
Member Brownrigg suggested taking this issue to the Zero Waste Committee to see if the Agency as a whole 
wants to spend time and money to be forensic about where our material is actually ending up. 
 
Public Comment from Ricki McGlashan.  She commented that she didn’t know that Recology was contractually 
bound to take plastics 3-7 even though they couldn’t be recycled.  She asked when there would be an 
opportunity to change that language in the contract or update the website so that there could be less confusion 
from a consumer’s point of view. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that staff is reluctant to make changes like this in the Franchise 
Agreements, because markets do change, and we don’t want to give residents mixed signals if things do 
change.  So, we work towards finding legislative and market solutions to find better uses for the material that is 
being widely used in packaging but isn’t recyclable. 
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Vice Chair Bonilla added that the item discussed at agenda item 11A – the California recycling and Plastic 
Pollution Reduction Act - is designed to change the production of plastics so that manufacturers and producers 
won’t be able to place their materials into these kinds of plastics, which will have an impact on the market.  He 
asked if this legislation was aimed at not allowing non-recyclable plastics to be produced. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that his understanding was that if passed, it would give jurisdiction to 
CalRecycle to define what is and what is not recyclable meaning does it have a market to go to.   
 
Dan Domonoske noted that this legislation would force plastics producers to have truth in advertising by not 
allowing the petrochemical companies to put the recycling symbol on non-recyclable products.  He also added 
that this legislation will force some producer responsibility, so he thought it was a move in the right direction.  He 
noted that he thought CalRecycle’s statewide commission on recycling would also be making some positive 
changes going forward, but that the Agency’s approach to go slow when responding to market changes is 
consistent with many other agencies. 
 
Public Comment: Ricki McGlashan still thought the website should be updated to reflect the current state of 
recycling, so that more residents were aware that even though plastics 3-7 are accepted they are being put in 
the landfill because there is no market for them. 
 
Vice Chair Bonilla asked staff to put language on the website indicating that plastics 3-7 are not being recycled. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that staff could modify the language on the website to reflect the current 
market reality.   
 
Staff Au noted that at RethinkWaste.org there is an FAQ page that includes this information, but they could think 
through the organization of this to make it easier to find. 
 
Staff Gans added that the states of Maine and Oregon recently passed extended producer responsibility 
legislation to charge packaging producers the cost for handling those items when they are disposed of, so if 
they’re not recyclable they are taxed.  A lot of states are watching how these programs get implemented, as it is 
complicated.  He noted he would send articles on this after the meeting. 
 
Public Comment: Ricki McGlashan asked if the Recology website could be updated with this information as well. 
 
Mike Kelly noted that Recology is open to updating their website as well. 
 
12. Informational Items Only (no action required) 

A. 2021-2022 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar 
B. Technical Consulting Contracts: June – October 2021 

 
Member Froomin commented that it was concerning that there's so many sole source contracts on the list, and 
that usually sole source is not the most efficient or least expensive way to do business because there is no 
competition. He wanted to make sure that staff is writing scopes of work in a way that maximizes the ability for 
competition. 
  

C. Check Register Detail for September 2021 
D. 2021-2022 Meeting Planning Guide 
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Chair Aguirre asked if staff has looked at the meetings for 2022.  It was noted that the 2022 Board Meeting 
calendar was approved as part of Consent earlier today, and that agenda item 12D had all of the 2022 Board 
and Committee meetings listed. 
 
13. Board Member Comments 
 
14. Adjourn 4:03PM 
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4B 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving the Audited Financial Statements for the Six-Month Period ending 

December 31, 2020 

 

Board Action 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-01 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action: 
 

Accept the South Bayside Waste Management Authority’s audited Annual Financial Statements (see 
Exhibit A to the Resolution) for the six-month fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 as prepared by the 
SBWMA’s audit firm, Maze & Associates. 

Summary 
The purpose of the financial statements is to present a summary of the financial position of the Authority for the 
fiscal year. These reports have been reviewed by the Board Finance Committee on January 11th, 2022 which 
recommends Board approval.  The Finance Committee previously reviewed Financial Statements at its October 
2021 meeting and recommended the below edits, which are incorporated into Exhibit A.   
 
Finance Committee recommended edits, which are now incorporated into Exhibit A: 

 Reclassify Atherton’s withdrawal payment to Non-Operating Revenue 
 Expand on Note 1 regarding Atherton’s withdrawal from the JPA explaining the process and Board 

approval of Atherton’s liquidation of existing debts, obligations, and liabilities 
 Explain why the Agency aligned its fiscal year with the calendar year necessitating a 6-month period 
 Include a proforma column in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) annualizing the 6-month 

financials for comparative purposes 
 Add an explanation of the newly created Sub-Emergency Reserve for Self-Insurance Fund 

 
The final step in the formal process of preparing these financial statements is to present them to the Board for its 
acceptance.   
 
Analysis 
The financial statements of the SBWMA for fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, have been prepared by the 
City of Redwood City Administrative Services Department and examined by the independent auditing firm Maze & 
Associates and SBWMA staff. It is the unqualified opinion of the audit firm that the financial statements present 
fairly the financial position of the SBWMA as of December 31, 2020, and that the financial statements were 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. No exceptions or qualifications were found. 
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Financial Condition Summary 
As shown in Table 2 of the Audit report, total net position increased by $2.0 million to $24.6 million.  The 
unrestricted net assets (Unrestricted Reserve) remained flat at $16.3 million at December 31, 2020 (see Table 1 
and 4 in the Audit report).   

 
General Operating Results 
Table 1 below contains the financial results for the six-month period ending December 31, 2020.  The six-month 
results have been annualized on Table 1 and compared to fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 expressed in a 
percentage variance. 
 
 
 
Table 1 – Financial Results 

 
 
 
Variance explanations: 
Please see the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) of Exhibit A for a narrative on financial results.  
Variance explanations are difficult to analyze, as the previous period contained a full year of revenue and 
expenses compared to this six-month period ending December 31, 2020.  The six-month results have been 
annualized in the Table 2 and 3 of the MDA for comparative purposes. 
  
Long-Term Debt 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the SBWMA had bond debt outstanding of $58,424,850, a decrease of $1.1 
million.  Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued to refund 

 FY2020 FY2020 Variance 
12 months ending 

6/30/2020

Six months ending 

12/31/2020
%

Tip Fee Revenue 45,660,060$     23,069,176$     46,138,352$     1%

Commodity Revenue 5,856,511$        3,015,844$        6,031,688$        3%

Other Revenue 1 19,299$             21,728$             43,456$             125%

Total Revenues 51,535,870$     26,106,748$     52,213,496$     1%

Shoreway Operations Expense 40,325,760        21,054,283        42,108,566        4%

SBWMA Program Expense 3,199,159          1,648,322          3,296,644          3%

Franchise Fees 2,178,179          1,101,827          2,203,654          1%

Depreciation Expense 3,011,979          1,572,095          3,144,190          4%

Total Expenses 48,715,077$     25,376,527$     50,753,054$     4%

Operating Income 2,820,793$        730,221$           1,460,442$        -48%

Investment Income, Other 768,838$           250,382$           500,764$           -35%

Withdrawal Payment - Atherton 2,169,211$        2,169,211$        n/a

Loss on sale of capital assets (34,134)              -                      -                      -100%

Interest Expense (2,802,192)         (1,221,923)         (2,443,846)         -13%

Grant Revenue 500,000             120,000             120,000             -76%

NET POSITION 1,253,305$        2,047,891$        1,806,571$        44%

Annualized based 

on 6 month ending 

12/31/20
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the 2009A Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain 
associated equipment to the material recovery facility and transfer station. 

6/30/2020  12/31/2020  
Revenue Bonds 2019 $59,519,033 $58,424,850  

Payment of principal on the 2019 bonds began on September 1, 2020. Additional information on the SBWMA’s 
long-term debt can be found in note (4) to the accompanying financial statements.   

Fiscal Impact 
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of this Resolution. 

Attachments: 
        Resolution 2022-01.  Accepting the Authority’s Six Month Audited Financial Statements ending 
        December 31, 2020 

        Exhibit A – SBWMA Audited Annual Financial Statements for the Period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01    
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020 
  

 
 WHEREAS,  the South Bayside Waste Management Authority contracted with the audit firm Maze & 
Associates to conduct an audit of the Agency’s financial records in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the financial statements for the fiscal year period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 as 
prepared by said firm have been completed and are attached as Exhibit A; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is recommended that the Board accept the financial statements.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves the Annual Financial Report as prepared by Maze & Associates for the fiscal year period July 1, 2020 to 
December 31, 2020. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-01 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022. 
 
 
    
ATTEST:       Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 

Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist     
Menlo Park     



SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 
 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 For the Period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To Members of the Board of Directors of the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority (Authority), California, as of December 31, 2020 and for the period July 1, 2020 to 
December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in financial position and 
cash flows for the period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Change in End of Accounting Period 
 
As discussed in Note 1i, the Authority changed its end of accounting period from June 30 to December 
31. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic 
or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 
27, 2021 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Pleasant Hill, California 
November 19, 2021 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2020 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section presents an overview and analysis 
of the financial performance of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) for 
the six months ended December 31, 2020.  It should be read in conjunction with the audited 
financial statements that follow this section. 
  
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The SBWMA’s financial statements include: 
 
Statement of Net Position presents information on the SBWMA’s assets and liabilities as of the 
fiscal year-end, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Authority is improving or deteriorating.  
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the 
SBWMA’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position 
changed during the fiscal year.  These statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which 
the Authority has successfully recovered its costs through user fees and other charges. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, 
capital, non-capital, and investing activities.  The statement summarizes the annual flow of cash 
receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the 
obligation or receipt and exclude non-cash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of 
assets. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
financial statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The following table summarizes the Authority’s change in net position from last fiscal year to the 
six months ended December 31, 2020. 

 

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change
Current and other assets 39,417,871$   41,164,495$           1,746,624$     4.4%
Capital assets, net of depreciation 50,518,853     49,731,989             (786,864)        -1.6%

Total assets 89,936,724     90,896,484             959,760          1.1%

Long-term debt outstanding 59,519,033     58,424,850             (1,094,183)     -1.8%
Other liabilities 7,837,490       7,843,542               6,052              0.1%

Total liabilities 67,356,523     66,268,392             (1,088,131)     -1.6%

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,407,940       6,203,217               (204,723)        -3.2%
Restricted for debt service -                   2,076,906               2,076,906       n/a
Unrestricted 16,172,261     16,347,969             175,708          1.1%
Total net position 22,580,201$   24,628,092$           2,047,891$     9.1%

Table 1
Comparative Net Position

June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020
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Net Position 
 

The total net position increased by $2.0 million or 9.1% from the prior fiscal year. This increase 
is comprised solely of an increase in restricted net position of $2.1 million and an increase in 
unrestricted net position of $.1 million, offset by a decrease in net investment in capital assets of 
$.2 million. 
 
Total liabilities decreased by $1.1 million or 1.6%. This decrease is primarily attributed to the 
reduction in the amount of long-term debt, as a result of the payment of the annual debt service.   
More information on the long-term debt is located in the “Long-term Debt” section. There was a 
minimal increase of $6,000 or 0.1% in other liabilities. 
 
The largest portion of the Authority’s assets is its investment in net capital assets totaling $49.7 
million.  These assets are comprised of land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure, less 
accumulated depreciation, and are primarily located at the Shoreway Environmental Center.  The 
actual year-over-year comparison of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, shows a 
decrease of $0.8 million or 1.6% due to capital asset additions of $5.8 million in buildings, 
improvements, and equipment, and a decrease of $5.0 million in construction in progress, which 
are offset by depreciation expense of $1.6 million.  These changes are explained further in the 
“Capital Assets” section. 
 
The net investment in capital assets is $6.2 million as of December 31, 2020.  It represents the 
Authority’s investment in infrastructure and other capital assets, net of amounts borrowed to 
finance that investment. It should be noted that these funds are not available for spending because 
the capital assets cannot be liquidated to settle liabilities. Therefore, the resources needed to repay 
the debt must be provided from other sources. Restricted net position of $2.1 million represents 
the withdrawal funds from the Town of Atherton that are in an escrow account.  Unrestricted net 
position totaling $16.3 million represents the part of net position that can be used to finance 
operations. 
 

Results of Operations 
 
The following table summarizes the Authority’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

 

FY 2020 December 31, 2020*

Annualized 
(estimate based on 
6 months ending 

12/31/20)

$ Change 
(from FY 2020 

to 12 month 
estimate) % Change

Revenues
Charges for services 45,660,060$   23,069,176$           46,138,352$           478,292$         1.0%
Commodity revenue 5,856,511       3,015,844               6,031,688               175,177           3.0%
Other operating revenues 19,299            21,728                    43,456                    24,157             125.2%
Withdrawal payment from Atherton -                  2,169,211               2,169,211               2,169,211        n/a
Grant revenue 500,000          120,000                  120,000                  (380,000)          -76.0%
Investment Income 768,838          250,382                  500,764                  (268,074)          -34.9%

Total Revenues 52,804,708     28,646,341             55,003,471             2,198,763        4.2%

 Expenses
Operating expenses 48,715,077     25,376,527             50,753,054             2,037,977        4.2%
Loss on sale of capital assets 34,134            -                           -                           (34,134)            n/a
Interest expense 2,802,192       1,221,923               2,443,846               (358,346)          -12.8%

Total Expenses 51,551,403     26,598,450             53,196,900             1,645,497        3.2%

Increase (decrease) in net position 1,253,305       2,047,891               1,806,571               553,266           44.1%
Beginning net position 21,326,896     22,580,201             22,580,201             1,253,305        5.9%
Ending net position 22,580,201$   24,628,092$           24,386,772$           1,806,571$      8.0%

Table 2
Comparative Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020
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While the Statement of Net Position (Table 1) shows the change in financial position, the Statement of 
Activities (Table 2 above) provides answers as to the nature and sources of the changes. 

Changes in operating revenues for the six months ended December 31, 2020 are comprised of the 
following: 

 Charges for services, also known as tipping fee revenue, decreased by $22.6 million or 
49.5%, from $45.7 million in FY20 to $23.1 million for the six months ended December 
31, 2020.  On an annualized basis, the charges for services are estimated to be slightly 
higher than FY 20. 

 Commodity revenue decreased by $2.8 million, or 48.5% from $5.9 million in FY20 to 
$3.0 million for the six months ended December 31, 2020.  On an annualized basis, the 
commodity revenue is estimated to be slightly higher than FY 20.  

 Other operating revenues increased by $2.4 thousand from FY20 
 Non-operating revenue, which includes a one-time withdrawal payment from the Town of 

Atherton in the amount of $2.2 million 
 Investment income, which is nonoperating revenue, was $0.5 million less for the six 

months ended December 31, 2020, compared to FY20, due to decreased market values of 
currently held investments.  Even on an annualized  basis, the investment income is 
estimated to be less than FY 20.   

 Grant revenue in the amount of $120 thousand during the six months ended December 31, 
2020 from Recology of San Mateo, as part of the CalRecycle program, for the Organics to 
Energy Project.  

 
The primary component of operating expenses (83.0%) is related to the Shoreway operations that 
include contractually obligated costs incurred to pay the Shoreway operator, and disposal and 
processing expenses. The Shoreway operations expense (Table 3) decreased by $19.3 million, or 
47.8%, from FY20 to the six months ended December 31, 2020.  On an annualized basis, Shoreway 
operations expense is estimated to be slightly higher than FY 20.   
 
Table 3 below shows just the operating results of the Authority (excluding depreciation). It 
excludes all revenue and expenditure not directly associated with operating activities such as 
investment income, grant revenue, and interest expense.  For the current fiscal year, operating 
results were $2.3 million compared to $5.8 million for the prior fiscal year, a decrease of 23.3%.   
 

  
 

FY 2020 December 31, 2020 $ Change %  Change

Annualized Amount 
for Six Months Ended 
December 31, 2020

Operating Revenue

Charges for Services 45,660,060$    23,069,176$           (22,590,884)$ -49.5% 46,138,352$                 

Commodity Fee 5,856,511        3,015,844               (2,840,667)     -48.5% 6,031,688                     

Other Operating Revenue 19,299             21,728                    2,429              12.6% 43,456                          

Total Operating Revenue 51,535,870      26,106,748             (25,429,122)   -49.3% 52,213,496                   

Operating Expense (excl Depn.)

Shoreway Operations 40,325,760      21,054,283             (19,271,477)   -47.8% 42,108,566                   

Program Admin 3,199,159        1,648,322               (1,550,837)     -48.5% 3,296,644                     

Franchise Fee 2,178,179        1,101,827               (1,076,352)     -49.4% 2,203,654                     

Total Operating Expense (excl Depn.) 45,703,098$    23,804,432$           (21,898,666)   -47.9% 47,608,864$                 

Total Operating Results (excl Depn.) 5,832,772$      2,302,316$             (3,530,456)$   -60.5% 4,604,632$                   

*Six months ended period are not comparable to FY 2020 (12 month period)

Table 3

Operating Results

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020
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Reserves 
 
Table 4 below reflects the amount of reserves that have been designated by the Board as of June 
30, 2020 and December 31, 2020. 

   
In 2002, the SBWMA Board established a cash reserve policy to set aside certain portions of 
unrestricted net position for specific uses in order to protect the short and long-term financial 
operation of the Authority.  In May 2013, the Board revised the Cash Reserve Policy to accomplish 
the goal of more clearly defining the reserve accounts.  In November 2018, the Board further 
revised the Cash Reserve Policy to include a Capital Reserve Fund to fund future capital projects 
that cannot be absorbed in one budget period.  The current policy consists of a Rate Stabilization 
Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Equipment Replacement Reserve, Capital Fund Reserve, and 
Undesignated Reserve.  In addition, the Board approved a sub-emergency reserve for self-
insurance in response to an increased property insurance deductible.  The Rate Stabilization 
Reserve & Emergency Reserve are calculated at up to 10% of operating expenses.  Operating 
expenses include Shoreway Operations expense, SBWMA program expenses, bond interest 
expense, and franchise fees.  Operating expenses exclude depreciation, buyback, and household 
hazardous waste payments.  The Emergency Reserve is to address unexpected and sudden capital 
needs or significant one-time increases in Shoreway operating expenses associated with “damage 
by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community emergency scenarios that are not 
covered by existing insurance policies”.  The current policy prioritizes the order of the accounts 
so the Rate Stabilization Reserve is first in priority followed by the Emergency Reserve. 
   
All reserve fund levels are approved by the Board each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal 
year budget. 
 
Capital Assets 
The following table summarizes changes in the Authority’s capital assets. 
 

 

FY 2020 December 31, 2020

Rate Stabilization Reserve 4,615,999$               4,617,529$               
Emergency Reserve 4,615,999                 4,617,529                 
   Sub-Emergency Reserve - Self-insurance 113,985                    113,985                    
Equipment Replacement Reserve 766,789                    766,789                    
Capital Fund Reserve 6,059,489                 6,232,137                 

Total Unrestricted Reserves 16,172,261$             16,347,969$             

Table 4
Unrestricted Reserves Balances

FY 2020 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change
Land 14,000,000$        14,000,000$           -$                 0.0%
Construction in progress 8,739,355            3,713,330               (5,026,025)       -57.5%
Buildings and systems 36,441,591          41,972,586             5,530,995        15.2%
Machinery and equipment 24,333,572          24,638,000             304,428           1.3%
Total accumulated depreciation (32,995,665)        (34,591,927)            (1,596,262)       4.8%

Total Net Capital Assets 50,518,853$        49,731,989$           (786,864)$        -1.6%

Table 5
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020
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The net capital assets decreased by $0.8 million, or 1.6%, from $50.5 million in FY20 to $49.7 
million for the six months ended December 31, 2020. The decrease is the net of the annual $1.6 
million depreciation charge, and $0.8 million in capital expenditures to replace equipment, 
numerous upgrades to the Shoreway facility and Material Recovery Facility, and the continuation 
of the Organics-to-Energy pilot project. 
  
Additional information on the capital assets can be found in Note (4) of the financial statements. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had $58.4 million total debt outstanding, a 
decrease of $1.1 million, or 1.8%, from $59.5 million in FY 20. 
 

  
 
Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued 
to refund the 2009A Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and 
acquisition of certain associated equipment to the Authority’s solid waste materials recovery 
facility and transfer station located in the City of San Carlos, CA. 
 
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note (5) to the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our member agencies, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the 
revenues and expenses in the course of doing business. If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director, South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority, 610 Elm Street, San Carlos, California 94070. 

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change
2019A Refunding Revenue Bond 31,860,000$       31,860,000$           -$                
2019B Refunding Revenue Bond 16,915,000         16,065,000             (850,000)        -5.0%
Net Premium 2019A/B 10,744,033 10,499,850 (244,183) -2.3%

Total 59,519,033$       58,424,850$           (1,094,183)$   -1.8%

Table 6
Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs

June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments for operations (Note 2) $19,076,557
Accounts receivable 4,376,303
Interest receivable 35,375
Prepaid items 653,584

Total Current Assets 24,141,819

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2) 17,022,676
Capital assets (Note 3):

Land 14,000,000
Construction in progress 3,713,330
Building 41,972,586
Equipment 24,638,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (34,591,927)

Net capital assets 49,731,989

Total Noncurrent Assets 66,754,665

Total Assets 90,896,484

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 5,657,530
Interest payable 772,833
Current portion of compensated absences 84,380
Long-term debt due in one year (Note 4) 1,733,365

Total Current Liabilities 8,248,108

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences due in more than one year 95,159
Accrued liabilities (Note 6) 1,233,640
Long-term debt due in more than one year (Note 4) 56,691,485

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 58,020,284

Total Liabilities 66,268,392

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 6,203,217
Restricted 2,076,906
Unrestricted 16,347,969

Total Net Position $24,628,092

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $23,069,176
Commodity revenue 3,015,844
Other 21,728

Total Operating Revenues 26,106,748

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Shoreway operations 21,054,283
SBWMA program administration 1,648,322
Franchise fee - transfer station 1,101,827
Depreciation (Note 4) 1,572,095

Total Operating Expenses 25,376,527

Operating Income 730,221

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grant revenue 120,000
Withdrawal payment from Atherton 2,169,211
Investment income 250,382
Interest expense (1,221,923)

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 1,317,670

Change in Net Position 2,047,891

NET POSITION AT JULY 1, 2020 22,580,201

NET POSITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 $24,628,092

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers $26,693,599
Payments to suppliers (23,604,566)
Payments to employees (806,326)

Net Cash Flows (used for) Operating Activities 2,282,707

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 280,999

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 280,999

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital assets additions (785,231)
Retirement of revenue bonds (1,094,183)
Interest paid (1,262,007)

Net Cash Flows (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (3,141,421)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal payment from Atherton 2,169,211

Net Cash Flows (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities 2,169,211

Net Cash Flows 1,591,496

Cash and investments for operations - July 1, 2020 34,507,737

Cash and investments - December 31, 2020 $36,099,233

Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments for operations $19,076,557
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 17,022,676

Total cash and investment $36,099,233

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $730,221
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 1,572,095
Net change in:

Accounts receivable 586,851
Prepaids (652,596)
Accounts payable 17,972
Compensated absences 28,164

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $2,282,707

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Amortization related to long-term debt $488,365

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020  
 

 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

a. Organization 
 

The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the Authority) is a joint powers 
authority formed on October 13, 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership, 
financing and administration of the Facilities, currently the Shoreway 
Environmental Center in San Carlos; and the planning, administration 
management, review, monitoring, enforcement and reporting of solid waste, 
recyclable material and plant material collection activities within Authority's 
service area. 

 
Members of the Authority include the towns of Atherton and Hillsborough, and 
the cities of Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Menlo Park, 
Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, as well as the West Bay Sanitary 
District and the County of San Mateo. 

 
The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one elected 
representative from each member. None of the member entities exercise specific 
control over the budgeting and financing of the Authority's activities beyond their 
representation on the board. Accounting services are provided by the City of 
Redwood City.  
 
Effective December 31, 2020, the Town of Atherton withdrew as a Member 
Agency. Withdrawal is provided for in Article 15.1 of the Authority’s JPA so long as 
the withdrawing Member Agency liquidates in full its proportion of any and all 
existing debts, obligations, and liabilities incurred, earned, or expected to be 
earned by the date of withdrawal, including but not limited to the Revenue Bonds, 
as determined by the Board and the withdrawal is approved by a 4/5 affirmative 
vote of the Member Agencies. 
 
In 2020, Atherton provided notice of its intent to withdraw from the Authority’s JPA. 
On August 20, 2020, the Board held a properly noticed hearing regarding this 
request and determined Atherton’s liquidation obligation to be approximately $2.2 
Million. The Member Agencies thereafter approved Atherton’s withdrawal, 
contingent upon liquidation of its obligation to the JPA. 
 
As noted above, Atherton thereafter satisfied its liquidation obligation and exited 
the JPA effective December 31, 2020. 

 
Based on the franchise agreements with each member agency and Recology 
effective January 1, 2011, the Authority collects service fees from Recology for 
the processing and disposal of collected materials. The facility operator, South 
Bay Recycling, also collects fees from public customers which are remitted to 
the Authority. South Bay Recycling is paid by the Authority to operate the 
facility and transport materials to disposal and processing facilities on a per 
ton basis pursuant to the Operations Agreement. The compensation to both 
contractors is adjusted annually based primarily on various CPI indices. The 
Authority also directly pays for disposal and processing of solid waste and 
organics materials to vendors such as BFI/Republic, Recology Grover, Zanker 
Road. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

b. Enterprise Fund Accounting 
 

The Authority is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its 
activities for financial statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to 
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs and expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services 
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges and the sale of commodities. 

 
An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private 
sector, where the proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the 
full accrual basis of accounting is required. With this measurement focus, all 
assets and all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its balance sheet, all 
revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation, 
are recognized when incurred. Enterprise fund equity includes retained earnings 
and contributed capital. 
 

c. Net Position Flow Policy 
 

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both 
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In 
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and 
unrestricted – net position in the proprietary fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered 
to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted – net position to 
have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is used. 

 
d. Capital Assets 

 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their 
estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Expenditures which 
materially increase the value or life of capital assets are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. The Authority’s policy 
is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding the $10,000 threshold and a 
useful life of more than one year. 

 
All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets 
equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to 
depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost 
of capital assets. 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020  
 

 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method; meaning the cost of the 
asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to 
expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has 
assigned the useful lives of capital assets by type as listed below: 

 
Building 10 - 40 years 
Improvements 5 - 20 years 
Equipment 5 - 15 years 

 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the 
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested 
proceeds over the same period. 
 

e. Compensated Absences 
 

Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned. 
All employees who hold full-time regular positions are entitled to 15 working 
days' vacation pay upon successful completion of their first year of continuous 
service. The accrual rate increases as length of service exceeds 5 years. 
Maximum accumulation of vacation is two years' vacation accrual. Upon 
termination or retirement, full-time employees are entitled to receive 
compensation at their current base salary for all unused vacation and 50% of 
their sick leave balance. The liability for compensated absences is determined 
annually. 
 

f. Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans 
 

The Authority offers its employees a retirement plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 401a. The employer contribution to the 401a is 
10% plus a match up to 2% of the employee contribution. 

 
The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457b. Pursuant to the IRC 
subsection (g), all amounts of compensation deferred under the deferred 
compensation plan, all property, or rights are solely the property and rights of 
the employee and beneficiaries of the Plan. Deferred compensation funds are 
not subject to the claims of the Authority’s general creditors; consequently, the 
assets and related liabilities of the plan are not included within the Authority’s 
financial statements. 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020  
 

 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

g. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Authority has no items that 
qualify for reporting in this category. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has no items that qualify for 
reporting in this category. 
 

h. Fair Value Measurements 
 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within 
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  
The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in 
measuring fair value are observable in the market.   
 
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that 
are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.   
 
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one 
level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on 
the lowest priority level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

i. Change in End of Accounting Period 
 

The SBWMA Board approved a change in accounting period to align its fiscal 
year with the calendar year.  This fiscal period and audit for the period of July 1, 
2020 to December 31, 2020 is necessary to facilitate the change in accounting 
period.  The reasoning for this change is due to two factors: 
1. The SBWMA’s major contracts renew on a calendar year basis, including the 

franchise collection contract, the facility operations contract and the disposal 
and processing contracts.   

2. The 11 Member Agency’s total system cost and ratepayer service fees are 
calculated and adjusted on a calendar year basis. 

 
Note 2: Cash and Investments 
 

The Authority pools cash from all sources except cash and investments held by fiscal 
agents so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and 
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time. 

 
a. Policies 

 
California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge 
government securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on 
deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the 
deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held 
in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority's name and 
places the Authority ahead of general creditors of the institution. The Authority 
Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that are fully insured 
up to $250,000 by the FDIC. 
 
The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual 
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an 
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the 
security, called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the Authority 
employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain Authority 
managed investments, regardless of their form.  
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

The Authority's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its 
investments to reflect their fair value at each year end, and it includes the effects 
of these adjustments in income for that year. 

 
b. Classification 

 
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, 
based on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt 
instruments or agreements. 

 
Statement of Net Position

Cash and investments for operations 19,076,557$         
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 17,022,676

Total Cash and Investments 36,099,233$         
 

 
Cash and investments for operations is used in preparing proprietary fund 
statements of cash flows because these assets are highly liquid and are expended 
to liquidate liabilities arising during the period. 

 
c. Investment Authorized by the California Government Code and the 

Authority’s Investment Policy 
 

The Authority's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the 
Authority to invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are 
acceptable to the Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not 
exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code, or the Authority's Investment Policy when the Authority's 
Investment Policy is more restrictive. 
 

Maximum
Minimum Investment 

Maximum Credit Maximum In One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality in Portfolio Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Upon 

Deman
d

N/A

50% to 70% of the investment 
portfolio, as approved by the 

SBWMA Board but no more than 
$75 million  permitted by LAIF 

N/A

San Mateo County Investment Pool
Upon 

Deman
d

N/A
30% to 50% of the investment 
portfolio, as approved by the 

SBWMA Board
N/A

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 5 Years N/A 100% N/A
U.S. Government Agency and Federal 
   Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances 180 Days N/A 40% (B)

Commercial Paper 270 Days

Highest 
letter and 
number 

rating by an 
NRSRO

25% (A)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years N/A 30% (A)
Time Certificates of Deposit - Banks
   or Savings and Loans
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 Years A 30% (A)

(A)      5% of outstanding paper of issuing corporation and 10% of the portfolio in one corporation
(B)      No more than 30% of the agency's money may be in bankers' acceptances of any one commercial bank.

N/A

5 Years N/A 100% N/A

5 Years N/A 30%
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

d. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with 
trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are 
unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the Authority 
fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government 
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with Authority resolutions, 
bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the investment types 
that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies 
certain provisions of these debt agreements: 
 

Minimum
Credit

Authorized Investment Type Quality
Direct obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the

United States None
Obligations issued or guaranteed by FMHA, FHA, General

Services Administration, GNMA, U.S. Maritime Administration,
HUD, and backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America None

Direct obligations of FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, REFCORP,
Farm Credit Enterprise, Federal Agriculture Mortgage
Association, Tennessee Valley Authority None

Money Market Fund AA
U.S. dollar denominated Certificates of Deposit, savings 

accounts, deposit accounts None
Investment agreements, including GIC's forward purchase

agreements and reserve fund put agreements None
Commercial Paper A-1
General obligations of States or municipalities AAA
Bankers acceptances A-1+
Medium Term Notes AAA
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund None
San Mateo County Investment Pool None

 
 

e. Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an 
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. The Authority generally manages its interest rate risk by holding 
investments to maturity. 

 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments 
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations 
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's 
investments by maturity or earliest call date: 
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

12 Months
or less Total

California Local Agency Investment Fund 8,464,326$     8,464,326$    
San Mateo County Investment Pool 7,526,579 7,526,579
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Fund 17,022,676 17,022,676

Total Investments 33,013,581$   33,013,581

Total Cash in Bank and Cash on Hand 3,085,652

Total Cash and Investments 36,099,233$  

Investment Type

 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

 
The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of 
the Treasurer of the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in 
LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of 
the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, 
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state 
funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-
sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations. 

 
San Mateo County Investment Fund 

 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund 
(SMCIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 53600 
under the oversight of the treasurer of the County of San Mateo. The Authority 
reports its investment in SMCIF at the fair value amount provided by SMCIF. The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by SMCIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  
Included in SMCIF’s investment portfolio are U.S. Treasury Notes, obligations 
issued by agencies of the U.S. Government, LAIF, corporate notes, 
commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed 
securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by 
federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. The 
Authority reports its investments in SMCIF at the fair value amounts provided by 
SMCIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share. 
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

f. Credit Risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation 
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in 
California Local Agency Investment Fund and San Mateo County Investment 
Pool are not rated and therefore no rating is shown. 

 
Presented below is the actual rating as of December 31, 2020, for each investment 
type as provided by S&P ratings: 

 
Investment Type AAAm Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Fund 17,022,676$    17,022,676$    

Totals 17,022,676$    17,022,676

Not rated:
California Local Agency Investment Fund 8,464,326
San Mateo County Investment Pool 7,526,579

Total Investments 33,013,581

Total Cash in bank and cash on hand 3,085,652
Total Cash and Investments 36,099,233$    

 
 

g. Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy 
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets.  Level 1 
inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable 
inputs. 
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of 
investments of the Authority as of December 31, 2020: 
 

Exempt Total
Investments by Fair Value:

California Local Agency Investment Fund 8,464,326$     8,464,326$     
San Mateo County Investment Pool 7,526,579 7,526,579

Total Investments at Fair Value 15,990,905$   15,990,905
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Money Market Fund 17,022,676

Total Investments 33,013,581
Cash in banks 3,085,652

Total Cash and Investments 36,099,233$   

Investment Type

 
 

Both the California Local Agency Investment Fund and the San Mateo County 
Investment Pool are external investment pools and exempted in the fair value 
hierarchy, under GASB 72.  
 

h. Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The Authority's Investment Policy contains certain limitations on the amount that 
can be invested in any one issuer. In certain categories, these limitations surpass 
those required by California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. 
Investments in any one issuer, other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual 
funds, and external investment pools that represent 5% or more of total Entity-
wide investments. There were no such investments at December 31, 2020. 

 
Note 3: Capital Assets and Facilities Operations 
 

Pursuant to a sales agreement with Republic Services, Inc., the Authority purchased 
land, and buildings and personal property amounting to $14 million and $5.228 
million, respectively. These facilities comprise the Shoreway Environmental Center 
in San Carlos. The Authority signed an agreement to lease back the facilities to 
Republic Services, Inc. to operate them. This agreement expired on December 31, 
2006 and the Authority had extended the agreement until December 31, 2010. The 
Authority signed a new agreement effective January 1, 2011 with South Bay 
Recycling to operate the facility. For the 6-months period ended December 31, 2020, 
the Authority paid $10,218,054 to South Bay Recycling to operate the Facility. 
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Note 3: Capital Assets and Facilities Operations (Continued) 
 

Changes in capital assets were as follows for the 6-months period ended December 31, 
2020: 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2020 Additions Deletions Transfers December 31, 2020

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 14,000,000$     -$                   -$                   -$                    14,000,000$           
Construction in progress 8,739,355         666,555        -                     (5,692,580)    3,713,330                

Total non-depreciable assets 22,739,355       666,555        -                     (5,692,580)    17,713,330              

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 36,441,591       -                     24,167          5,506,828     41,972,586              
Equipment 24,333,572       118,676        -                     185,752        24,638,000              

Total capital assets being depreciated 60,775,163       118,676        24,167          5,692,580     66,610,586              

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (15,495,726)      (610,699)      -                     -                      (16,106,425)            
Equipment (17,499,939)      (961,396)      (24,167)         -                      (18,485,502)            

Total accumulated depreciation (32,995,665)      (1,572,095)   (24,167)         -                      (34,591,927)            

Net capital assets being depreciated 27,779,498       (1,453,419)   -                     5,692,580     32,018,659              

Capital assets, net 50,518,853$     (786,864)$    -$                   -$                    49,731,989$           
 

 
Note 4: Revenue Bonds 
 

The Authority's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in 
detail thereafter. 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2020 Retirements December 31, 2020 One Year

2019A Solid Waste
Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds 31,860,000$           -$                         31,860,000$                   -$                      

2019A Bond premiums 7,582,171              (172,322)               7,409,849                       344,644              
2019B Solid Waste

Enterprise Revenue Bonds 16,915,000             (850,000)               16,065,000                     1,245,000           
2019B Bond premiums 3,161,862              (71,861)                 3,090,001                       143,721              

59,519,033$           (1,094,183)$           58,424,850$                   1,733,365$         
 

a. Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds 2019A and Solid Waste 
Enterprise Revenue Bonds 2019B 

 
On July 9, 2019 SWBMA issued Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2019A, Non-Alternative Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $31.86 
million and Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B, Alternative 
Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $16.915 million. The Series 2019A 
Bonds were issued to refund, in full, the Series 2009A bonds, pay a portion of the 
cost of a debt reserve insurance policy, and pay costs of issuance of the Series 
2019A Bonds, including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy. 
The Series 2019B Bonds were issued to pay certain costs incurred by SBWMA in 
connection with the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain 
associated equipment to SBWMA’s solid waste materials recovery facility and 
transfer station located in the City of San Carols, CA, pay a portion of the cost of the 
Reserve Policy, and pay costs of issuance of the California series 2019B Bonds, 
including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy. 
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Note 4: Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 
The refunding resulted in an overall debt service savings of $3,454,784 over the life 
of the bond. The net present value of the debt service savings is called an 
economic gain and amounted to $9,873,987. 
 
The series 2019 bonds are solely payable from and secured by the net revenues 
and debt service reserve fund held by the Authority's trustee, as defined under the 
bond indenture. Net Revenues means, for any period, all of the revenues during 
such period less all of the maintenance and operation costs during such period. 
Revenues mean all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the 
Authority.  
 
The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the 
Authority to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if 
any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure 
of the Authority to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement 
terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the Authority; or if any court or competent 
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Authority. There were no such 
events occurred during the period ending December 31, 2020. 
 

b. Revenue Pledge 
 

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the Authority’s Net Revenue as defined 
under the bond indenture. For the 2019A bonds, the pledge of future net revenue 
ends upon repayment of the 2019A bonds in the amount of $82,167,375 in 
remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur in the year 2043. 

 
According to the Rate Covenant in the 2019A Bond Indenture, the Authority will 
maintain a Net Revenue to Debt Service coverage ratio of 1.40. As of the period 
ended December 31, 2020, the Net Revenues to Debt Service Coverage ratio was 
2.46. 
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Note 4: Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 

c. Debt Service Requirements 
 

Annual debt service requirements on the bonds are shown below with specified 
repayment terms: 
 

For the Year 
Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total

2020 1,245,000$          2,396,250$          3,641,250$          
2021 1,305,000 2,334,000 3,639,000
2022 1,370,000 2,268,750 3,638,750
2023 1,440,000 2,200,250 3,640,250
2024 1,515,000 2,128,250 3,643,250

2026 - 2030 8,780,000 9,427,000 18,207,000
2031 - 2035 11,205,000 7,001,250 18,206,250
2036 - 2040 14,300,000 3,905,750 18,205,750
2041 - 2042 6,765,000 511,500 7,276,500

Total 47,925,000 32,173,000 80,098,000

Unamortized Bond Premium 10,499,850          -                         -                         

58,424,850$        32,173,000$        80,098,000$        
 

 
Note 5: Insurance 

 
The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies to protect itself from claims 
arising from the following types of losses: 
 

Type of Coverage Coverage Limits
General Aggregate Limit 2,000,000$           
General Liability deductible 2,500 SIR
Environmental Impact Liability aggregate 2,000,000
Environmental Liability deductible 25,000 SIR
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Limit 1,000,000
Employee Benefits Liability 1,000,000
Excess Liability 10,000,000
Property & Equipment Loss 60,000,000
Property & Equipment deductible 1,500,000
Directors & Officers, Employment Practices, and Fiduciary Liabilities 
   Aggregate for all loss combined, including defense costs 7,000,000
Directors & Officers Liability Retention 50,000
Employment Practices Liability Retention 75,000
Fiduciary Liability Retention 2,500
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Note 6: Pollution Remediation 
 

In 2000 the South Bay Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) purchased the 
property located at 225/333 Shoreway Road in San Carlos. The property had pre-
existing ground water contamination issues and the former property owner Allied 
Waste (now Republic Services) was identified as the responsible party. The ground 
water contamination is the result of hydrocarbon and petroleum products. Both Allied 
Waste and the SBWMA have managed a remediation effort under supervision from 
the County of San Mateo Department of Environmental Health. 

 
The San Mateo County Health System (SMCHS) and the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) have reviewed and approved the SBWMA’s “Closure 
Report” submitted on January 29, 2013 to close the Shoreway Environmental Center 
(“Shoreway”) groundwater remediation project and issued a NOTICE OF CASE 
CLOSURE on April 29, 2014. This case closure letter is the final step in the Shoreway 
remediation closure and “no further remediation action” is required at the Shoreway 
facility. While no further remediation effort was deemed necessary, due to concerns 
about potential residual contamination, the property has a deed restriction requiring it 
to remain industrially zoned. 

 
In March of 2010, the SBWMA received a lump sum settlement payment of 
$1,500,000 from Republic Services (formerly Allied Waste and BFI). This money was 
deposited into a SBWMA account dedicated to the ongoing clean-up efforts at 
Shoreway (the remediation cost estimate was negotiated with Allied per methods 
approved by County regulators and based on input from environmental engineers). At 
the close of remediation efforts on April 29, 2014 the Shoreway Remediation Fund had 
an unspent balance of $1,239,826. The unspent balance as of December 31, 2020 is 
$1,233,640 and is reported as accrued liabilities. 

 
Note 7: Net Position 

 
The Authority has designated $16,347,969 unrestricted net position for several 
reserves which include: $4,617,529 for rate stabilization, $4,731,514 for emergency 
reserve, $766,789 for equipment replacement, and $6,232,137 for capital items. 
These designations may be modified, amended or removed by Authority Board action. 
 

Note 8: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 
 
Litigation 
 
SBWMA is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion 
of legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of SBWMA. 
 
Construction Commitments 
 
There are no significant construction commitments as of December 31, 2020. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial 
statements of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (Authority), as of and for the 
period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated August 27, 
2021.   
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
  

25

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/27/2022

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 4B EXHIBIT A - p29



 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated August 27, 2021, 
which is an integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Pleasant Hill, California 
November 19, 2021 
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4C 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Director’s Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving the SBWMA Investment Policy for 2022 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-02 attached hereto 
authorizing the adoption of the Investment Policy for 2022. See Exhibit A to the Resolution for the proposed 2022 
Investment Policy. 
Summary 
The Investment Policy states that the policy shall be reviewed and adopted by resolution of the Board on an 
annual basis, typically at the January BOD Meeting.  It was last approved by the Board on January 28, 2021.  The 
2022 policy has been reviewed by the Board Finance Committee on January 11th, 2022 which recommends 
approval.  SBWMA contracts many of its financial transactional services with the City of Redwood City. While 
serving in its advisory capacity, Redwood City Staff and Redwood City’s investment advisory firm, PFM 
Consulting, also reviewed the investment policy and recommends one edit to the policy for compliance with 
California Code.  The recommendation is to remove one sentence in the Policy’s commercial paper paragraph so 
that the language is in line with Code language.  The recommended edit is red-lined in Exhibit A, Section 5.  
Also see Attachment A – Communication from PFM Consulting.   
 
Staff is also recommending edits to clean up the Policy’s language on investment oversight, which are presented 
in red-line on Exhibit A. 
 
In Addition, the Finance Committee recommended changing the allowable percentage investments in LAIF Fund 
and County Pool, which is further described below. 
 
Background 
On August 24, 2000, the Board approved the first Investment Policy based on the then-financial services 
contractor, City of San Carlos’ Investment Policy. The Board has since approved revisions on an annual basis. 
The attached 2022 Investment Policy is fully compliant with California Code.  The primary objective of the 
Investment Policy is safety of principal, while meeting the cash flow needs of the JPA, through prudent investment 
of surplus cash.  
 
In January 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the mix of investments between the County Pool and the state 
LAIF Fund. The Audit Sub-Committee agreed to increase the County Fund to 30% to 50% while keeping the state 
LAIF Fund at 50% to 70%. This change was approved by the Board at the January 22, 2015 Board meeting.   
 
At Board request, environmentally responsible investment language was added to the adopted 2020 investment 
policy and this language continues forth in the recommended 2022 policy. 
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At it’s June 2021 meeting, the Finance Committee recommended increasing the allowable percentage 
investments in the County Pool and LAIF Fund.  The Committee concluded that the government investment pools 
are so conservative by law that increasing the allowable percentage is low risk.  A greater percentage of 
investment in each of the County Pool and LAIF would allow management to maximize returns.  The Committee 
recommended an 80% limit for both County Pool and LAIF subject to Finance Committee review. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the attached Investment Policy. 

 
Attachments: 
Resolution 2022-02 

         Exhibit A – Investment Policy 
Attachment A – Communication from PFM Consulting 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02    

RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 
 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

APPROVING THE SBWMA INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 2022 
   

 
 WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), the City of Redwood City and 
PFM Consulting have reviewed the SBWMA’s current Investment Policy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board’s Finance Sub-Committee has also reviewed the Policy on January 11th, 2022 and 
supports the recommendation; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves the 2022 SBWMA Investment Policy document as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of 
San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-02 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022. 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board 
 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist     
Menlo Park     
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
January 20221  
 
POLICY 
 
The investment of the funds of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is 
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies 
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the California Debt and 
Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC).  The authority governing investments for municipal 
governments is set forth in the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through 53686.  
 
The primary objective of the investment policy of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
is SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type and 
maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash investment 
practices are recognized as essential to good fiscal management and control. The SBWMA's 
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent 
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the 
balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give the SBWMA 
the optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.  
 
SCOPE  
 
The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority as accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements. Policy statements outlined in this 
document focus on the SBWMA's pooled funds and debt-related funds held by the trustee/ fiscal 
agent.  
 
PRUDENCE 
 
The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be 
applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. When investing, reinvesting, 
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, 
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, 
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person 
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the 
agency.  Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an 
overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law. 
 
It is the SBWMA's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure 
the return of all invested principal dollars.  
 
However, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and interest 
rate conditions at any point in time. It is further recognized that in a well-diversified investment 
portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or individual 
security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context of the overall 
investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return. 
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The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and 
Principal Analyst of the City of Redwood City (RWC) and other individuals assigned, as approved 
by the SBWMA Executive Director and SBWMA Senior Finance Manager to manage the SBWMA 
investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other written 
procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and liability for 
an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations 
are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.  
 
OBJECTIVES 
 
Safety of Principal 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority. 
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from 
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. The SBWMA shall seek to 
preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk. 
 
Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by 
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the 
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm the SBWMA's capital base and cash flow. 
 
Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of 
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the SBWMA's investment 
portfolio to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio 
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to 
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term 
speculation. 
 
Liquidity 
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in 
an effort to ensure that the SBWMA's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
SBWMA to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. 
 
MATURITY MATRIX 
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate 
risk and maximize earnings. Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the 
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio should 
not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in the 
following maturity sectors: 
 
Maturity Range 
Suggested Percentage 
1 day to 7 days  10 to 50% 
7 days to 180   10 to 30% 
180 days to 360 days  10 to 30% 
1 year to 2 years  10 to 20% 
2 years to 3 years   0 to 20% 
3 years to 4 years   0 to 20% 
4 years to 5 years   0 to 20% 
Over 5 years   Board Authorization Required * 
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* One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If, in the opinion of the 
Executive Director or the SBWMA Board of Directors, matching the segregated investment portfolio 
of the bond reserve fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given 
current economic analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity 
limitation as outlined in this document.  
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
Investment performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Oversight 
Committee; whose membership is outlined in the following section. Investment performance 
statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the Investment 
OversightAdvisory Committee and to the SBWMA Board of Directors. Annually, a statement of 
investment policy, and any proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment 
OversightAdvisory Committee and to the SBWMA Board of Directors for Board consideration at a 
public meeting. 
 
The SBWMA’s investment portfolio is designed to at least attain a market average rate of return 
through economic cycles.  The market average rate of return is defined as average return on the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF’s returns due to 
budget constraints). 
 
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 
The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority and the 
authority granted by SBWMA Board assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash to the 
City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director or Principal Analyst. Daily 
management responsibility of the investment program may be delegated to the City’s Financial 
Services Manager, who shall establish procedures for the operation consistent with this investment 
policy. 
 
INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 
The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and 
Principal Analyst (City Treasurer) of the City of Redwood City will provide general oversight and 
direction concerning the policy related to management of SBWMA's investments, . Iin conjunction 
with the City’s investment advisory firm, Tthe Financial Services Manager shall review and approve 
quarterly investment reports prepared by the Finance Division and meet as necessary to discuss 
changes to the report or the investment strategy.  The SBWMA Board will be provided with quarterly 
reports for their review within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report 
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code. 
 
ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to make 
impartial investment decisions. Additionally the City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative 
Services Director and the Financial Services Manager are required to annually file applicable 
financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC).  
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SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES 
 
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities 
dealer, all securities owned by the SBWMA shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust 
department, acting as agent for the SBWMA under the terms of a custody agreement.  All trades 
executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through the SBWMA's safekeeping 
agent.  
 
Securities held custody for the SBWMA shall be monitored by the City’s Financial Services Manager 
to verify investment holdings. 
 
All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the City’s Financial Services Manager 
in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the SBWMA Board of Directors. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
Separation of functions between the City’s Financial Services Manager and the Principal Analyst, 
Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk is designed to provide 
an ongoing internal review to prevent the potential for converting assets or concealing transactions. 
 
Investment decisions are made by the City’s Financial Services Manager, executed by the Principal 
Analyst,  Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk.  All wire 
transfers initiated by the Accountant or Account Technician must be reconfirmed by the appropriate 
financial institution to the Financial Services Manager.  Proper documentation obtained from 
confirmation and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for each investment transaction. 
Timely bank reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of all transactions. 
 
The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate 
general ledger accounts by the Account Technician on a monthly basis.  An independent analysis 
by an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform procedure testing on the 
Agency’s cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial statements.  The 
Financial Services Manager shall review and assure compliance with investment process and 
procedures.   
 
REPORTING 
 
The City’s Financial Services Manager shall review and render quarterly reports to the Board of 
Directors which shall include the face amount of the cash investment, the classification of the 
investment, the name of the institution or entity, the rate of interest, the maturity date, the current 
market value and accrued interest due for all securities.  The quarterly reports will be submitted to 
the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days  following the end of the quarter covered by the report 
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code.   If there are no Board of Director 
meetings within the 30-day period, the quarterly report shall be presented to the Board of Directors 
at the soonest possible meeting thereafter. 
 
 
QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS 
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The SBWMA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers. 
The broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The City currently does not maintain a list 
of broker/dealers approved to do business with the City.  When necessary, the City shall go through 
the Request for Proposal processes to select the broker/dealers.    Investment staff shall investigate 
dealers wishing to do business with the SBWMA to determine if they are adequately capitalized, 
have pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities 
appropriate to the SBWMA's needs.  The SBWMA’s investment policy shall be made available on 
the Authority’s website for broker/dealers’ review. 
 
COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit.  In order to reduce market risk, the 
collateral level will be at least 110% of market value of principal and accrued interest.  
 
ENVIRONMENTALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTING 
 
When possible, the Authority will invest in companies that demonstrate verifiable environmental 
stewardship policies that align with the SBWMA’s Triple Zero goals. These goals are identified in 
the Authority’s 2020 Long Range Plan-Guiding Principles and Objectives. They are: 
 

1. Eliminate the disposal of recyclable materials at landfills 
 

2. Eliminate the disposal of organic materials at landfills 
 

3. Minimize Agency greenhouse gas emissions (through measures such as using low-
emission vehicle fuels and reducing the need for materials collection and transfer of 
materials). 

 
These goals will allow the Authority’s environmental responsible asset investment to strategically 
align with its mission, and with its Member Agencies’ own environmental visions. 
 
 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
 
Investment of SBWMA funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et 
seq. Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further limited 
herein: 
 

1. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of 
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage 
limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year maturity 
limitation is applicable. 
 

2. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed investment 
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted 
by California State Law.  A review of the pool/fund is required when they are part of the list 
of authorized investments, with the knowledge that the pool/fund may include some 
investments allowed by statute but not explicitly identified in this investment policy.   
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3. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored 
enterprises. There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this 
category, although a five-year maturity limitation is applicable. 
 

 
4. Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise 

known as banker's acceptances. Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days 
to maturity or 40% of the cost value of the portfolio. Also, no more than 30% of the agency’s 
money may be in bankers’ acceptances of any one commercial bank. 

 
5. Commercial paper ranked the highest letter and number rating by a nationally recognized 

statistical rating organization (NRSRO), such as Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch 
Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s Investors Services, and issued by domestic corporations having 
assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having a rating in the rating category of “A” or the 
equivalent or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by NRSRO. Purchases 
of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity. nor represent more than 
10% of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of commercial paper 
may not exceed 25% of the cost value of the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value 
of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer. 

 
6. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC 

insured institutions), a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 
5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or 
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit may 
not exceed 30% of total portfolio. A maturity limitation of five years is applicable. No more 
than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.  

 
 
7. Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California 

Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations. 
Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than 30% of the investment portfolio may be 
invested in this investment type.  A maturity limitation of five years is applicable. 

 
8. Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased. 

Securities eligible for investment shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or the equivalent 
or better by an NRSRO. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30% of the market 
value of the portfolio and no more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be 
invested in notes issued by one corporation.. 

 
9. Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to, 

common stocks and long term (over five years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited 
from use in this portfolio. It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the 
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be 
approved by Board of Directors prior to purchase. 

 
10. Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and 

custodian banks contracted by the SBWMA may be purchased as allowed under State of 
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California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S. Treasury or Government agency 
obligations can be utilized.  

  
The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, is established for the 
SBWMA's total pooled funds portfolio: 
 

Authorized 
Investment Type 

Government 
Code 

Maximum 
Maturity 

Minimum 
Credit 

Quality 
Maximum in 

Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

in One Issuer 

Local Agency 
Investment Fund 
(LAIF) 

16429.1  
Upon 

Demand 
N/A 

2050% to 7080% 
of the investment 
portfolio, as 
approved by the 
SBWMA Board 
but no more than 
$75 million  
permitted by LAIF  

N/A 

San Mateo County 
Investment Pool 

53684 
Upon 

Demand 
N/A 

2030% to 5080% 
of the investment 
portfolio, as 
approved by the 
SBWMA Board 

N/A 

Treasury Obligations 
(bills, notes & bonds) 

53601(b) 5 Years N/A 100% N/A 

US Government 
Agency and Federal 
Agency Securities 

53601(f) 5 Years N/A 100% N/A 

      
Bankers’ 
Acceptances 

53601(g) 180 Days N/A 40%  30% 

Commercial Paper 53601(h) 270 Days 

Highest 
letter and 
number 

rating by 
an 

NRSRO 

25% 5% 

Negotiable 
Certificates of 
Deposit 

53601(i) 5 Years N/A 30% 5% 

Time Certificates of 
Deposit – Banks or 
Savings and Loans 

53601.8 5 Years N/A 30% N/A 

Medium Term 
Corporate Notes 

53601(k) 5 Years 

Rating 
category 
“A” by 
NRSRO 

30% 5% 
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DERIVATIVE INVESTMENTS 
 
Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index. That benchmark 
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The use of 
derivatives is prohibited under this policy.  
 
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 
 
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment type, 
or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority's Investment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language. 
 
INTEREST EARNINGS 
 
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated 
quarterly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund at quarter end as a 
percentage of the entire pooled portfolio. 
 
LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION 
 
The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the 
general policy of the SBWMA to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering 
to the following guidelines: 
 
All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all 
investments. 
 
Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements where 
possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity. 
 
All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under 
then prevailing economic conditions. However, economic or market conditions may change, making 
it in the SBWMA's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity. 
 
PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 
 
The investment program shall seek to augment returns consistent with the intent of this policy, 
identified risk limitations and prudent investment principals. These objectives will be achieved by 
use of the following strategies: 
 
Active Portfolio Management.  Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage 
of current economic and interest rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and 
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio. 
 
Portfolio Maturity Management.  When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio, the 
SBWMA shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow 
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher 
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations when 
the level of interest rates change.  



South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
Investment Policy 
Page 9   
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/27/2022  AGENDA ITEM: 4C EXHIBIT A - p9 

 
Security Swaps.  The SBWMA may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the 
overall portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the 
transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in the SBWMA 
permanent investment file documents.  
 
Competitive Bidding.  It is the policy of the SBWMA to require competitive bidding for investment 
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue" 
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding 
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and 
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process. If 
a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be verified to current 
market conditions and documented for auditing purposes. 
 
POLICY REVIEW 
 
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution 
of the Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure 
its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield, and its 
relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy shall be 
forwarded to Board for approval. 
 
Glossary of Terms 
 
Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received. 
 
Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement. 
 
Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by 
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time. 
 
Annual Financial Report - The official annual financial report for the SBWMA. It includes five 
combined statements and basic financial statements for each individual fund and account group 
prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
 
Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.  
 
Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).  
 
Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities. 
 
Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified stream 
of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.  
 
Bond Swap – Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an 
advantage for the investor.  Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses, 
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio. 
 
Book Entry Securities – Securities, such stocks held in “street name,” that are recorded in a 
customer’s account, but are not accompanied by a certificate.  The trend is toward a certificate-free 
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society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates 
themselves.  All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of the 
transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions with 
each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications and the 
“book-entry” custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.  These banks 
have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government and agency 
securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a fiduciary 
capacity.  Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the government securities 
dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries.  The system reduces 
the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of transactions. 
 
Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.  
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal 
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue.  Outstanding bearer bonds are 
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in “book-entry” form.  That is, the latter exist as 
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued.  New bearer and registered bonds are no 
longer being issued.  Since August 1986, the Treasury’s new issues of marketable notes and bonds 
are available in book-entry form only.  All Treasury bills and more than 90% of all other marketable 
securities are now in book-entry form.  Book-entry obligations are transferable only pursuant to 
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury. 
 
Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value 
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount. 
 
Broker – In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities.  The broker, who 
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading, 
accounting for the name registered representative. 
 
Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC at a set rate for a specified 
period of time. 
 
Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to 
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys. 
 
Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT) - An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a 
specific time frame. This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the 
given Treasury maturity range. 
 
Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the 
bond's face value. 
 
Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the 
ability to meet debt obligations. 
 
Current Yield- The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of 
the security. 
 
Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's 
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out 
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal. 
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Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) - Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for the 
securities.  
 
Discount- The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at 
lower than face value. 
 
Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent returns 
and risk profiles. 
 
Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of 
the cash flows serve as the weights; the future point in time at which on average, an investor has 
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon 
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's present value cash flow time line. 
 
Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S. sponsored 
corporation. 
 
Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of 
Governors, 12 regional banks and approximately 3,000 commercial banks that are members. 
 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing 
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $250,000) per account. 
 
Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the 
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system. 
 
Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S. 
sponsored corporation. 
 
Ginnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct 
obligation bearing the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. 
 
Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.  
 
Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage. 
 
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject to 
certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.  
 
Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash. 
 
Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold. 
 
Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and 
payable. 
 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO): A U.S. Securities & Exchange 
Commission registered agency that assesses the creditworthiness of an entity or specific security. 
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NRSRO typically refers to Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s 
Investors Services. 
 
New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market. 
 
Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an 
independent third party representing the purchasing entity. 
 
Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market activity 
and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its informal 
oversight.  
 
Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date. 
 
Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market 
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return. 
 
Repurchase Agreement (REPO) - A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from 
the buyer (SBWMA) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.  
 
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO) - A transaction where the seller (SBWMA) 
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period 
of time. 
 
Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset. 
 
Safekeeping- see custody. 
 
Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S. sponsored 
corporation. 
 
Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the 
initial distribution. 
 
Settlement Date- The date on which a trade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds. 
 
Time Deposit – A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on account 
for a specific length of time.  While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook account at 
any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, are penalized for early withdrawal. 
 
Treasury Obligations- Debt obligations of the U.S. Government that are sold by the Treasury 
Department in the forms of bills, notes, and bonds. Bills are short-term obligations that mature in 
one year or less. Notes are obligations that mature between one year and ten years. Bonds are 
long-term obligations that generally mature in ten years or more. 
 
U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of which 
are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency. 
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Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. It is obtained 
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security. 
 
Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any 
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of 
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage. 
 
Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date for 
maturities up to thirty years. 
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John Mangini

Subject: FW: SBWMA investment policy review
Attachments: _Investment Policy_Approved 012821_REVIEW Dec 2021_PFMAM edits.docx

From: Allison Kaune <KAUNEA@pfmam.com>  
Sent: Monday, December 6, 2021 9:25 AM 
To: FIN‐Derek Rampone <drampone@redwoodcity.org> 
Cc: Monique Spyke <SPYKEM@pfmam.com> 
Subject: SBWMA investment policy review 

Good morning Derek, I hope you had a nice weekend. We have completed our review of SBWMA’s Investment 
Policy.  The Policy is in compliance with California Government Code (Code) and in line with best practices. 
This year we are recommending just one change to the Policy’s commercial paper language, in response to a 
Code change resulting from the passage of Senate Bill 998.  

In our review last year, we provided SBWMA information on SB 998, the subsequent Code changes, and the 
impact of those changes on the Policy. Last year we noted that the Policy required no changes as a result of 
the Code changes. However, there is one sentence in the Policy’s commercial paper paragraph that we 
recommend deleting so that the language is in line with Code language.  

In addition to this change, we also updated the maximum allowed in LAIF and the San Mateo County 
Investment Pool, as requested by the Finance Committee at the June meeting.  

The attached Policy shows our recommended edits. 

Please let us know if you have any questions. 
Thank you, 
Allison 

Allison Kaune 
Pronouns: she, her, hers 
____ 

PFM Asset Management LLC 
email kaunea@pfmam.com | phone 415.515.6389 

**Note: effective 9/18/2021, my email address has changed to kaunea@pfmam.com 
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4D 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Joe La Mariana, Executive Director  
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving Contract Amendment #1 with HFH Consulting not-to-exceed $96,970 

for SBWMA Operating Agreement RFP Technical Support   
 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-03 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action: Authorize the Executive Director to Execute Contract Amendment #1 with 
HFH Consulting not-to-exceed $96,970 for SBWMA Operating Agreement RFP Technical Support. 
 

Summary 
Due to a key Staff vacancy and some unexpected additional scope of work activities, Staff recommends Board 
approval of HFH Consulting contract modification #1 to shift all RFP support technical activities to this contractor. 
HFH has agreed to expand their project team to accommodate these tasks. All service will continue to be provided 
on a time and materials basis. 
 
In addition to the transfer of these essential workplan task to accommodate the unexpected Staff vacancy, several 
additional activities have been identified for execution that were not included in the base contract, including: 
 

1. Obtaining detailed cost analysis to support the workplan’s Phase 1’s per-ton and per-mile service fees. 
2. Providing additional cost and operating data on Organics-to-Energy operations to evaluate proposer’s 

responses in this newly emerging area (pilot concluded October 2021). 
3. Determine final MRF fees (estimates were only required in Phase 1 SOW). 
4. Address Vocational Rehabilitation Services (VRS) labor provided in responses if alternate labor options 

are proposed. 
5. Providing additional utility cost info to determine Recology vs. SBR usage splits, and to request/evaluate 

modified cost proposal, if warranted. 
6. Provide updated housekeeping description and request/evaluate modified cost, if warranted.  
7. Provide a SB1383 Material Sampling Plan, and request/evaluate modified cost proposal if warranted.  
8. Calculating modified CRV revenue sharing requirements if, anticipated legislation is passed. 
9. Providing additional calculations relating to end-of-contract transfer vehicle fleet transfer costs; Alternative 

fuel preferences; and Compost/mulch procurement requirements, should proposals require this analysis.    
 
A detailed projection of proposed Amendment 1 hours and costs are provided in Exhibit A. 
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Analysis. 
Staff has carefully reviewed the proposed scope of additional services by HF&H Consulting, and finds it to be 
justified due to the extended staff vacancy and necessary to maintain this high profile project’s critical path 
milestones.

Background 
The current Shoreway Operations Agreement term with South Bay Recycling (SBR) began on January 1, 2011 
and will expire on December 31, 2023, at which time a new agreement will need to be in place.  Due to the size 
($20M per year) and complexity of the existing Operating Agreement, Staff recommended, and on March 25, 
2021, the Board approved a two (2) year Work Plan (March 2021 – January 2023) for issuing a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for selection of a contractor to operate the Shoreway Recycling and Disposal Center, beginning 
on January 1, 2024.   

On that same date, the Board approved a contract with HF&H Consultants for a total of $295,254 to aid in the 
development of the RFP by providing a broad variety of highly technical services including preparation and 
distribution of complex RFP documents, bid sheets, financial analysis, negotiation, and preparation of final 
contract documents.  

The project workplan included sharing the highly technical project activities between HFH Consulting and Agency 
Staff to maximize each organization’s expertise and subject matter knowledge, as well as minimizing costs.  
Unfortunately, the Staff Management Analyst assigned to this project departed the Agency in late October 2021 
and recruitment to fill this vacancy has not yet yielded favorable results due to a challenging labor market. 
Because this work has incredible time sensitivity and an onboarded, trained Staff replacement is not envisioned in 
the immediate future, Staff recommends transferring these duties to HFH Consulting to maintain the integrity of 
the workplan’s crucial deliverables.  

Fiscal Impact 
A not-to-exceed $96,970 amount will be incurred with the assignment of this additional work to HFH Consulting. 

The anticipated Management Analyst vacancy savings (estimated for five+ months) are projected to be $65,110 
and this amount will offset 67% this proposed contract modification. The remaining $31,860 projected for these 
services will be included in the Agency’s FY2022 mid-year budget, before these expenses are incurred.   

Attachments: 
Resolution 2022-03 
Exhibit A – HFH Contract Project Worksheet—Proposed Modification 1 hours/fees 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03    
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD  
APPROVING CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1 WITH HFH CONSULTING NOT-TO-EXCEED 

$96,970 FOR SBWMA OPERATION AGREEMENT RFP TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
 
 WHEREAS, in the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is responsible for managing 
the Shoreway Facility and Site Operations Agreement; and  
 
 WHEREAS, On March 25, 2021, the Board approved a contract with HFH Consulting to work 
collaboratively with Agency Staff to maximize the expertise and knowledge of each organization while minimizing 
costs. All services are provided on a time and materials basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A key Agency Staff member departed the agency in late October and an extended 
recruitment is expected in the current marketplace. The anticipated vacancy savings will offset 67% of this 
proposed contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Additional technical services have been identified for during the RFP process to date, to 
expand; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves the execution of Amendment 1 of a contract with HFH Consulting attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of 
San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-03 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022. 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Alicia Aguirre, Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist     
Menlo Park     



SBWMA
Updated Budget for Facility Ops Procurement

Budget Adjustment Request (Excluding SBWMA Senior Mgt Analyst Support) Budget per HF&H Consulting Agreement (Anticipating SBWMA Senior Mgt Analyst Support)
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R 
Hi

lto
n

T 
Sw

an
bo

rn

P 
De

ib
le

r

S 
Ho

lt

N
 G

ae
tje

ns

Gr
an

t 
(S

BW
M

A)

K 
Er

w
in

Labor Labor Total R 
Hi

lto
n

T 
Sw

an
bo

rn

P 
De

ib
le

r

S 
Ho

lt

N
 G

ae
tje

ns

Gr
an

t 
(S

BW
M

A)

K 
Er

w
in

Labor Labor Total
Task Description $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost

1 Develop Overall Work Plan for Approval and Initiate Process
A Prepare RFQ 8 48 0 0 0 0 16 72 17,960$      -$           17,960$      8 48 0 0 0 40 16 112 17,960$      -$         17,960$     
B Prepare Draft Agreement 8 48 0 0 0 0 16 72 17,960$      -$           17,960$      8 48 0 0 0 40 16 112 17,960$      -$         17,960$     
C Review RFQ 2 24 0 0 0 0 16 42 9,290$         -$           9,290$         2 24 0 0 0 20 16 62 9,290$        -$         9,290$        
D Review/comments on agenda 3 12 0 0 0 0 0 15 4,335$         -$           4,335$         3 12 0 0 0 12 0 27 4,335$        -$         4,335$        
G Virtual meetings/review summary notes 9 15 0 0 0 0 0 24 7,020$         -$           7,020$         9 15 0 0 0 0 0 24 7,020$        -$         7,020$        

Subtotal Task 1 30 147 0 0 0 0 48 225 56,565$      -$           56,565$      30 147 0 0 0 112 48 337 56,565$      -$         56,565$     

2 Adjust Work Plan, Refine Strategy, and Seek Document Approval
A Support RFQ 2 16 0 0 0 0 0 18 5,170$         -$           5,170$         2 16 0 0 0 0 0 18 5,170$        -$         5,170$        
B Finalize RFQ and Agreement 2 12 0 0 0 0 16 30 5,870$         -$           5,870$         2 12 0 0 0 20 16 50 5,870$        -$         5,870$        
C Review/comments on agenda 4 12 0 0 0 0 16 32 6,480$         -$           6,480$         4 12 0 0 0 24 16 56 6,480$        -$         6,480$        
D Virtual meetings/review summary notes 4 12 0 0 0 0 0 16 4,640$         -$           4,640$         4 12 0 0 0 0 0 16 4,640$        -$         4,640$        

Subtotal Task 2 12 52 0 0 0 0 32 96 22,160$      -$           22,160$      12 52 0 0 0 44 32 140 22,160$      -$         22,160$     

3 Release RFP Documents to Industry
A Review draft RFQ announcement 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 1,140$         -$           1,140$         0 4 0 0 0 16 0 20 1,140$        -$         1,140$        
B Prepare responses to proposer questions 4 24 0 8 0 0 0 36 9,940$         -$           9,940$         4 24 0 8 0 24 0 60 9,940$        -$         9,940$        
C Prepare Addendun 4 and asisst with other administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$  -$             0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

Subtotal Task 3 4 28 0 8 0 0 0 40 11,080$      -$           11,080$      4 28 0 8 0 40 0 80 11,080$      -$         11,080$     

4 Review SOQs and Guide Evaluation Committee Shortlisting
A Develop SOQ review forms to guide SBWMA staff for efficient 

review and shortlisting.
0 8 0 2 12 0 0 22 5,150$         -$           5,150$         0 8 0 2 0 12 0 22 2,750$        -$         2,750$        

B Review all SOQs received (up to 6) to determine best qualified 
respondents. HFH will identify clarification and/or interview 
questions/issues. HF&H SBWMA staff to summarize proposals into 
review forms (task 4A) for evaluation committee.

12 40 0 4 48 0 0 104 25,600$      -$           25,600$      12 40 0 4 0 48 0 104 16,000$      -$         16,000$     

C Request clarification information from proposers; Nicole Grant to 
consolidate, organize, and reconcile comments from group; Nicole 
Grant to revise proposal summary review forms and cost proposal 
evaluation summaries as needed; Nicole Grant to seek follow up 
clarificaiton as needed.

4 16 0 6 24 0 0 50 11,990$      -$           11,990$      4 16 0 6 0 24 0 50 7,190$        -$         7,190$        

D Conduct interviews and facility tours with proposers (two days); 
Tracy virtual for interviews; Rob in-person for interview and tour; 
Nicole Grant to take lead on organizing logistics and interview 
questions.

16 32 0 0 20 0 0 68 18,000$      225$          18,225$      16 20 0 0 0 32 0 68 10,580$      225$        10,805$     

E Draft and finalize Review and comment on agenda and 
presentation materials for two Agency staff/AHSC meetings; 
SBWMA to schedule meetings.

4 20 0 0 24 0 0 48 11,720$      -$           11,720$      4 20 0 0 0 24 0 48 6,920$        -$         6,920$        

F Participate in two virtual meetings with Agency staff/AHSC to agree 
on shortlisting; prepare review meeting minutes prepared by 
SBWMA

4 16 0 0 8 0 0 28 7,380$         -$           7,380$         4 8 0 0 0 8 0 20 3,500$        -$         3,500$        

Subtotal Task 4 40 132 0 12 136 0 0 320 79,840$      225$          80,065$      40 112 0 12 0 148 0 312 46,940$      225$        47,165$     
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Task Description $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost

5 Complete RFP Response Evaluation
A Finalize review and evaluation of proposals, based on input from 

AHEC and seek follow-up clarification from proposers (if needed)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$           -$             0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

B Assist staff with preparation of agenda and presentation materials 
for one Agency staff/AHSC meeting

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$           -$             0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

C Participate in one meeting with Agency staff/AHEC to finalize 
proposal scoring; provide summary meeting notes

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$           -$             0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

Subtotal Task 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$           -$             0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

5 Identify Two Shortlisted Respondents
A Assist staff with preparation for one Board meeting to identify two 

shortlisted respondents for parallel negotiations; draft and finalize 
Review and comment on one draft of agenda and presentation 
materials prepared by SBWMA.

2 24 0 0 32 0 2 60 14,080$      -$           14,080$      2 24 0 0 0 32 2 60 7,680$        -$         7,680$        

B Participate in in-person Board meeting for approval of shortlisted 
respondents for parallel negotiations; review meeting minutes 
prepared by SBWMA

6 8 0 0 0 0 0 14 4,110$         75$            4,185$         6 8 0 0 0 0 0 14 4,110$        75$          4,185$        

Subtotal Task 6 8 32 0 0 32 0 2 74 18,190$      75$            18,265$      8 32 0 0 0 32 2 74 11,790$      75$          11,865$     

7 Conduct Parallel Negotiations with Two Shortlisted Respondents
A.1 Prepare request for Phase 2 proposal/supplemental information 

and evaluate the information received
8 40 0 16 40 0 2 106 25,830$      -$           25,830$      0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$             -$         -$            

A.2 Prepare agenda and meeting materials for three negotiating 
meetings (each)

6 8 0 0 36 0 0 50 11,310$      -$           11,310$      4 24 0 6 0 0 0 34 9,470$        -$         9,470$        

B Participate in three negotiating meetings (each); prepare review 
meeting minutes prepared by SBWMA (assumes both companies 
same day meetings or virtual negotiations)

24 30 0 0 36 0 0 90 23,070$      400$          23,470$      24 30 0 0 0 0 0 54 15,870$      400$        16,270$     

C Revise Operating Agreement following each meeting 12 90 0 16 60 0 16 194 46,910$      -$           46,910$      12 90 0 16 0 60 16 194 34,910$      -$         34,910$     

D Support SBWMA attorney in their finalizing the Operating 
Agreement

4 12 0 0 12 0 0 28 7,040$         -$           7,040$         4 12 0 0 0 12 0 28 4,640$        -$         4,640$        

E Draft and finalize Assist staff with preparation of two Board 
meeting staff reports, resolutions, and presentation materials

2 24 0 0 40 0 2 68 15,680$      -$           15,680$      2 24 0 0 0 0 2 28 7,680$        -$         7,680$        

F Seek Board approval of the final agreement (two Board meetings); 
review meeting minutes prepared by SBWMA

12 4 0 0 2 0 0 18 5,200$         150$          5,350$         12 4 0 0 0 0 0 16 4,800$        150$        4,950$        

Subtotal Task 7 60 168 0 16 186 0 18 448 109,210$    550$          109,760$    58 184 0 22 0 72 18 354 77,370$      550$        77,920$     

8 Execute Contract and Mobilization/Transition Plan (if applicable)
A Support contractor's preparation of mobilization/transition plan (3 

meetings)
12 18 0 0 0 0 0 30 8,790$         -$           8,790$         12 18 0 0 0 0 0 30 8,790$        -$         8,790$        

B Provide on-going support including participating in regularly team 
meetings and on-call response to issues

12 24 0 0 0 0 0 36 10,500$      -$           10,500$      12 24 0 0 0 0 0 36 10,500$      -$         10,500$     

Subtotal Task 8 24 42 0 0 0 0 0 66 19,290$      -$           19,290$      24 42 0 0 0 0 66 19,290$      -$         19,290$     

Total Proposed Cost

Total proposed hours and costs (excluding contingency) 186 641 0 52 394 0 102 1375 342,165$    850$          343,015$    176 597 0 42 0 448 100 1363 245,195$    850$        246,045$   

Requested Contract Adjustment
Increased cost without SBWMA senior analyst 10 44 0 10 394 0 2 460  $      96,970 
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Task Description $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost $305 $285 $265 $235 $200 $0 $115 Hours Cost Expenses Cost

Contingency Status
Est

 Hours Cost
Budget 173 $49,209
Actuals job-to-date (12/1/21) 74 $21,164
Remaining 99 $28,045

Use of contingency
2B Finalize RFQ and Agreement 42 $12,050
3B Prepare responses to proposer questions 32 $9,114
Total $21,164
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4E 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving the Acceptance of the remaining $500,000 Grant funds from the 

County of San Mateo for the SBWMA’s Organics-to-Energy pilot program’s Organics 
Extrusion Recovery System (OREX) Mechanical Processing System 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-04 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action:  Resolution Approving the Acceptance of the remaining $500,000 Grant 
from the County of San Mateo for the SBWMA’s Organics-to-Energy pilot program’s Organics Extrusion 
Recovery System (OREX) Mechanical Processing System 
Background  
On January 24th, 2019 the SBWMA Board approved resolution No. 2019-05 approving and accepting $1M in grant 
funds from the County of San Mateo to fund a portion the SBWMA’s Organics-to-Energy pilot program’s Organics 
Extrusion Recovery System (OREX) Mechanical Processing System.  On June 4, 2019, the County entered into 
an agreement with the SBWMA in the amount of $1M to fund a portion of the purchase and installation of the 
OREX project, attached hereto as Attachment A.  Work commenced and $500,000 of the $1 million in funding 
was distributed to the SBWMA under the June 4, 2019 agreement.  Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the OREX 
project was suspended due to a drop in organic waste from the commercial sector, and the agreement expired 
before the 3rd and 4th grant agreement milestones and associated funding were completed. 
 
Analysis 
The County of San Mateo wishes to continue to fund the remainder of its original commitment to the OREX project 
in the amount of $500,000 per Exhibit A – Grant Agreement Between the County of San Mateo and the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority. 
 
The Grant Agreement is specially for the purchase of O2E equipment used for extracting organics from solid 
waste and is tied to the installation and operation of the O2E system.  Legal counsels of both agencies have 
reviewed the agreement. 
 
Fiscal Impacts 

The SBWMA has received $500,000 in grant funds from the County of San Mateo. The grant funds are dedicated 
to the purchase of capital equipment that are being purchased as part of the O2E Pilot project (the Board 
approved this project on November 15, 2018).  Upon receipt, the remaining $500,000 in the grant funds will be 
applied towards the costs associated with the installation of the specified OREX Press equipment which is an 
integral component of this pilot program’s mechanical system.   
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Attachments: 
Resolution 2022-04   
Exhibit A – Grant Agreement between the County of San Mateo and the South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority 
 Exhibit A – Exhibits and attachments can be found at www.rethinkwaste.org    
  
Attachment A – June 4, 2019 Grant Agreement between the County of San Mateo and the SBWMA 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESOLUTION  
APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE REMAINING $500,000 GRANT UNDER A 

NEW GRANT AGREEMENT FROM THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO FOR THE SBWMA’s 
ORGANICS-TO-ENERGY PILOT PROGRAM’S ORGANICS EXTRUTION RECOVERY 

SYSTEM (OREX) MECHANICAL PROCESSING SYSTEM 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 15, 2018 the Board approved the O2E pilot project and the expenditure 
of $2.25 of agency funds towards the installation of the processing system,  

 
WHEREAS, the County of San Mateo Office of Sustainability has the goal of improvement the local 

environment and combating climate change that will impact the County residents, 
  
WHEREAS, the County’s grant funds are a significant contribution to the O2E project that will reduce 

GHG emissions and convert waste to energy,  
 
WHEREAS, the original June 4, 2019 grant agreement expired due to the suspension of the OREX 

project resulting from a drop in organic waste brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic, 
 
WHEREAS, the County of San Mateo wishes to continue to fund the remainder of its original commitment 

to the OREX project in the amount of $500,000 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby Resolution 
Approving the acceptance of the remaining $500,000 Grant from the County of San Mateo under a new grant 
agreement for the SBWMA’s Organics-to-Energy pilot program’s Organics Extrusion Recovery System (OREX) 
Mechanical Processing System. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist     
Menlo Park     
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 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-04 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022. 
 
 
    
ATTEST:       Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 
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Agreement No. __________________________ 

GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND  
THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
This Agreement is entered into this 22nd day of February, 2022, by and between the County of San 
Mateo, a political subdivision of the state of California, hereinafter called “County,” and the South Bayside 
Waste Management Authority, hereinafter called “Grantee.” 

* * * 

Whereas, Grantee is a Joint Powers Authority that provides waste, recycling, and organics collection to its 
twelve member agencies, which includes the County and ten cities within San Mateo County; and 

Whereas, Grantee is a leader in innovative waste reduction programs; and 

Whereas, Grantee wishes to purchase and install an Organics Extrusion Recovery System (“OREX”) at 
its Shoreway Environmental Center, which will recover organic material in the solid waste stream; and 

Whereas, recovering organic material that would otherwise remain in the solid waste stream will reduce 
the amount of landfilled waste generated in San Mateo County; and  

Whereas, on June 4, 2019, the County entered into an agreement with the Grantee in the amount of $1 
million to fund a portion of the purchase and installation of the OREX (“OREX project”), attached hereto 
as Exhibit C; and 

Whereas, the work commenced and $500,000 of the $1 million in funding was disbursed under the June 
4, 2019 agreement; and 

Whereas, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the OREX project was suspended due to a drop in organic 
waste from the commercial sector, and that agreement expired; and 

Whereas, the County wishes to continue to fund the remainder of its original commitment to the OREX 
project in the amount of $500,000. 

Now, therefore, the parties to this Agreement agree as follows: 

1. Exhibits and Attachments 

The following exhibits and attachments are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A—Services 
Exhibit B—Anaergia Organics Extrusion Recovery System Budgetary Proposal & Process 
Description 
Exhibit C—June 4, 2019 agreement  
 

2. Grant 

County hereby agrees to grant five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) to Grantee, which shall be 
transferred to Grantee in two payments according to the following schedule of milestones and anticipated 
dates: 

1. $250,000 upon operation of the OREX 
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2. $250,000 upon the ninetieth (90th) day that the OREX is operational 

3. Transfer of Funds 

Grantee shall provide, at the time that this Agreement is executed, all information necessary for County to 
electronically transfer the Grant funds the Grantee. 

4. Use of Grant Funds 

Grantee shall use the Grant funds to pay invoiced costs associated with the purchase, installation, and 
maintenance of the OREX system, as set forth in Exhibit B. Grantee may also use Grant funds to 
reimburse these same costs paid by Grantee. Grant funds shall not be used for any other purpose.  

5. Term 

Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall be from February 
22, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 

6. Termination for Failure to Complete 

In the event that Grantee abandons, discontinues, or otherwise does not complete the OREX project as 
set forth in Exhibit B, Grantee must provide written notice to County immediately.  Grantee shall return all 
unexpended grant funds to County within 60 days, and the Agreement shall be terminated.  

If the OREX project is abandoned or not completed within four (4) years of the date upon which the 
Grantee initiated the OREX project, Grantee shall return all unexpended grant funds to County within 60 
days, and the Agreement shall be terminated. 

7. Total OREX Project Cost 

The total cost of the OREX project is approximately $3,421,600. County and Grantee acknowledge the 
total cost of the OREX project will exceed the amount of Grant funds from the County. Grantee shall be 
responsible for funding the difference between the Grant funds available through this Agreement and the 
total cost of the OREX project. 

8. Relationship of Parties 

There is no new legal relationship between the County and Grantee created by this Agreement.  County 
shall have no rights of ownership or interest in the OREX equipment to be installed, nor shall it be liable 
or responsible in any way for its installation, operation, or maintenance.   

9. Hold Harmless  

Grantee shall indemnify and save harmless County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants 
from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description resulting from the installation of the 
OREX system, the performance of any work or services required of Grantee under this Agreement, or 
payments made pursuant to this Agreement brought for, or on account of, any of the following:   

(A) injuries to or death of any person, including Grantee or its employees/officers/agents;  

(B) damage to any property of any kind whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging;  
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(C) any sanctions, penalties, or claims of damages resulting from Grantee’s failure to comply, if 
applicable, with the requirements set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and all Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended; or  

(D) claims of damages resulting from the purchase and installation contract(s) to be executed by 
Grantee with third party supplies and/or installers. 

The duty of Grantee to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty to 
defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. 

10. Assignability 

Grantee shall not assign this Agreement or its right to receive Grant funds to a third party.  Any such 
assignment without County’s prior written consent shall give County the right to automatically and 
immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or advance notice. 

11. Insurance Requirements 

Grantee represents and warrants that it shall require all third-party contractors providing equipment or 
installation services for the OREX project to have adequate insurance to cover damages, losses, claims, 
or suits involving work by each third-party contractor. 

12. Compliance with Laws 

In completing the OREX installation, Grantee shall comply with all applicable law, including public 
contracting laws, prevailing wage regulations, and other labor laws.   

13. Publicity 

Grantee will allow County to review and approve or reject any text of any proposed publicity concerning 
this Grant Agreement prior to its release. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantee may discuss this Grant 
Agreement at public meetings held by its boards, and shall respond to any Public Records Act requests, 
or similar records requests permitted by law, without notice to County.  

14. Retention of Records; Right to Monitor and Audit 

Grantee shall maintain all required records relating to this Agreement and the OREX project for three (3) 
years after County makes the final Grant funds transfer, and Grantee shall be subject to the examination 
and/or audit by County. 

Grantee shall comply with all program and fiscal reporting requirements set forth by applicable Federal, 
State, and local agencies and as required by County. 

Grantee agrees upon reasonable notice to provide to County, to any Federal or State department having 
monitoring or review authority, to County’s authorized representative, and/or to any of their respective 
audit agencies access to and the right to examine all records and documents necessary to determine 
compliance with relevant Federal, State, and local statutes, rules, and regulations, to determine 
compliance with this Agreement, and to evaluate the quality, appropriateness, and timeliness of services 
performed. 

15. Merger Clause; Amendments 
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This Agreement, including the Exhibits and Attachments attached to this Agreement and incorporated by 
reference, constitutes the sole Agreement of the parties to this Agreement and correctly states the rights, 
duties, and obligations of each party as of this document’s date.  In the event that any term, condition, 
provision, requirement, or specification set forth in the body of this Agreement conflicts with or is 
inconsistent with any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification in any Exhibit and/or 
Attachment to this Agreement, the provisions of the body of the Agreement shall prevail.  Any prior 
agreement, promises, negotiations, or representations between the parties not expressly stated in this 
document are not binding.  All subsequent modifications or amendments shall be in writing and signed by 
the parties. 

16. Controlling Law; Venue 

The validity of this Agreement and of its terms, the rights and duties of the parties under this Agreement, 
the interpretation of this Agreement, the performance of this Agreement, and any other dispute of any 
nature arising out of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without 
regard to its choice of law or conflict of law rules.  Any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be 
venued either in the San Mateo County Superior Court or in the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of California. 

17. Notices 

Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be properly given when both:  (1) transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed 
below or transmitted via email to the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address 
listed below by either being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited for 
overnight delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that provides a tracking number 
showing confirmation of receipt. 

In the case of County, to: 

Name/Title: Gordon Tong, Sustainability Program Manager 
Address: SMC Office of Sustainability 
 455 County Center, 4th Floor, OS102 
 Redwood City, CA 94063 
Telephone: (650) 363-4159 
Email: gtong@smcgov.org 

In the case of Grantee, to: 

Name/Title: Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 
Address: 610 Elm Street, Suite 202 
 San Carlos, CA 94070 
Telephone: (650) 802-3505 
Email: jlamariana@rethinkwaste.org 
 

18. Electronic Signature 

Both County and Grantee wish to permit this Agreement and future documents relating to this Agreement 
to be digitally signed in accordance with California law and County’s Electronic Signature Administrative 
Memo. Any party to this Agreement may revoke such agreement to permit electronic signatures at any 
time in relation to all future documents by providing notice pursuant to this Agreement. 

mailto:gtong@smcgov.org
mailto:jlamariana@rethinkwaste.org
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19. Payment of Permits/Licenses  

Grantee bears responsibility to obtain any license, permit, or approval required from any agency for 
work/services to be performed under this Agreement at Grantee’s own expense prior to commencement 
of said work/services. 

* * * 
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In witness of and in agreement with this Agreement’s terms, the parties, by their duly authorized 
representatives, affix their respective signatures: 

 

For Grantee: South Bay Waste Management Authority  

 

_____________________________ 
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 

 _______________ 
Date 

  
 

 

 

 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO 

 

 

 By:       

 President, Board of Supervisors, San Mateo County 

 

 

 Date:     

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

Clerk of Said Board 
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Exhibits A; B and C to this agreement are available online only at 

www.rethinkwaste.org 

https://rethinkwaste.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/4_E_Exhibit-A-Exhibits-A-C-WEB-ONLY.pdf
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4F 

To:        SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2021 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
Analysis 
The primary objective of the Investment Policy for the SBWMA is safety of principal, while meeting the cash flow 
needs of the Authority, through prudent investment of unexpended cash.  As of September 30, 2021, the investment 
portfolio was compliant with the Investment Policy.  The portfolio contains sufficient liquidity to meet the next six 
months of expected expenditures by the Authority as well as by other third parties. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The attached Investment Portfolio Summary indicates that as of September 30, 2021, funds in the amount of 
$35,798,324 were invested, producing a weighted average yield of 0.32%.   

Below is a summary of the changes from the last quarter. 

Qtr Ended
6/30/21

Qtr Ended
9/30/21

Increase
(Decrease)

Total Portfolio 35,942,731$      35,798,324$      (144,407)$           
Weighted Average Return 0.36% 0.32% -0.04%
Interest/Dividends Earnings 28,388$             33,374$             4,986$                  

 
The total quarter-end portfolio balance decreased by $144,407 when compared with the previous quarter.  The 
decrease was primarily due to a transfer out of LAIF of $100,000 into the operating bank account at Wells Fargo 
and a debt service interest payment of $78,875, partially offset by investment earnings. Total interest and dividend 
earnings were slightly higher than the previous quarter, even though the investment balance and average return 
decreased, due to the timing of the payment of interest and dividends (earned in quarter ended June 30, 2021, but 
paid in quarter ended September 30, 2021).    
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A table comparison of the portfolio components is provided below: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: There may be minor differences in totals as individual amounts are rounded 
 
Due to arbitrage restrictions, bond investments are not included in our Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate 
or investment pool comparison.  As of June 30, 2021, the bond cost of issuance and project accounts of 
approximately $14.0 million were invested with the trustee in short-term investments and the defeasance account 
of $2.0 million was invested in fixed income investments. 
 
As of September 30, 2021, investment in the County Investment Pool totaled 47.8% of SBWMA’s funds available 
for investment pools (see Attachment 1), while the investment in LAIF totaled 52.2%.  These percentages are within 
the range specified by the SBWMA Board. 
 
The weighted average yield of the portfolio in the quarter excluding the bond proceeds was .56%.  LAIF is used as 
a benchmark and the average LAIF yield for the quarter ending September 30, 2021, was 0.24%.  The San Mateo 
County Pool average yield for the quarter was 0.91%. 
 
Derek Rampone, the Financial Services Manager of the City of Redwood City, has reviewed this report before 
presentation to the Board. 
 

Attachments 
A. Summary of All Investments for Quarter Ending September 30, 2021 
B.  Investment Portfolio 9/30/2021 - Chart 
C. Historical Summary of Investment Portfolio 
 
 
  

6/30/2021
Balance

% of
Total

9/30/2021
Balance

% of
Total

Change over 
Prior Quarter

SM County Pool 9,474,545$      26.4% 9,494,426$      26.5% 19,881$           
LAIF 10,467,738      29.1% 10,375,190      29.0% (92,548)            
Bond Accounts 16,000,448      44.5% 15,928,708      44.5% (71,740)            
Total Portfolio 35,942,731$    100.0% 35,798,324$    100.0% (144,407)$       



Attachment A

Category Rate of Return Historical Cost
% of 

Portfolio Market Value*
Interest/Dividend 

Earned

Liquid Investments:

San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL) 0.91% 9,494,426$           47.8% 9,545,741$        19,881$  
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 0.24% 10,375,190           52.2% 10,373,879$      6,360 

Weighted 
Average

Total - Investments 0.56% 19,869,616          100.0% 19,919,620        26,241 

Rate of Return
Bond Accounts - Cash with Fiscal Agents
BNY - 2009A Reserve Fund 0.00% - - - 
BNY - 2009A Payment Fund 0.00% - - - 
BNY - 2019AB Payment Fund 0.02% 41 41 17 
BNY - 2019AB Refunding Costs Fund 0.00% 1 1 - 
BNY - 2019AB Defeasance Costs (Atherton) Fund 0.00% - - - 
BNY - 2019AB Escrow (Atherton) Fund 0.61% 1,967,962             1,967,962           6,095 
BNY - 2019AB Refunding Project Fund 0.03% 13,960,704           13,960,704        1,021 

Total - Bond Accounts 15,928,708          15,928,708        7,133 

Weighted 
Average

GRAND TOTAL OF PORTFOLIO 0.32% 35,798,324$        35,848,328$      33,374$  

Total Interest/Dividend Earned This Quarter 33,374 
Total Interest/Dividend Earned Fiscal Year-to-Date 96,394 

   LAIF - 50% to 70%
   COPOOL - 30% to 50%

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

SUMMARY OF ALL INVESTMENTS
For Quarter Ending September 30, 2021

Note: SBWMA Board approved the following investment mix at its January 22, 2015 meeting:

*Difference in value between Historical Cost and Market Value may be due to timing of purchase.  Investments in the investment pools may have 
been purchased when interest rates were lower or higher than the end date of this report.  As interest rates increase or decrease, the value of the 
investment pools will decrease or increase accordingly.  However, interest rate fluctuations do not have any impact to SBWMA's balance in the 
investment pools (other than interest earnings).  The market values are presented as a reference only and are used for accounting purposes.
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Attachment B

San Mateo County Pool 26.5%
LAIF 29.0%
Bond Accounts 44.5%

San Mateo County Pool, 
26.5%

LAIF, 
29.0%

Bond Accounts, 44.5%

SBWMA
Investment Portfolio

9/30/2021

San Mateo County Pool LAIF Bond Accounts
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Attachment C

South Bayside Waste Management Authority Portfolio

Sep 2019 Dec 2019 Mar 2020 June 2020 Sep 2020 Dec 2020 Mar 2021 June 2021 Sep 2021
SM County Pool 5,292,948      5,321,963      7,347,186      7,374,118      7,403,715      7,432,906      7,454,664      9,474,545      9,494,426      
LAIF 10,891,545   14,412,065   10,630,374   9,491,582      8,426,617      8,445,144      8,458,497      10,467,738   10,375,190   
Bond Accounts 20,100,689   18,354,509   17,358,643   15,432,152   14,895,200   17,022,676   16,048,067   16,000,448   15,928,708   
Grand Total 36,285,182$ 38,088,537$ 35,336,203$ 32,297,852$ 30,725,532$ 32,900,726$ 31,961,228$ 35,942,731$ 35,798,324$ 

Sep 2019 Dec 2019 Mar 2020 June 2020 Sep 2020 Dec 2020 Mar 2021 June 2021 Sep 2021
SM County Pool 14.6% 14.0% 20.8% 22.8% 24.1% 22.6% 23.3% 26.4% 26.5%
LAIF 30.0% 37.8% 30.1% 29.4% 27.4% 25.7% 26.5% 29.1% 29.0%
Bond Accounts 55.4% 48.2% 49.1% 47.8% 48.5% 51.7% 50.2% 44.5% 44.5%
Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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4G 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board of Directors 
From:   Jean Savaree, General Counsel  
Date:   January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  RESOLUTION DIRECTING THAT ALL MEETINGS OF THE SBWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE, AND ALL BOARD-APPOINTED SUBCOMMITTEES 
CONTINUE TO BE HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) 

 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution 2022-05, making the findings 
required under AB 361 (California Government Code Section 54953) to continue holding public meetings of the 
Board, Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and all subcommittees of the Board via teleconference/Zoom 
videoconference to allow members of those bodies, staff, and the public to attend meetings remotely. 
 
Background and Discussion 
On October 21, 2021 and November 18, 2021, the SBWMA Board of Directors approved resolutions that made 
the findings required to continue SBWMA’s practice of holding public meetings by Zoom videoconference.  
Specifically, those resolutions found that: 
 
1) the declared state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic remained in effect; 
2) State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and  
3) meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety or attendees. 
 
Pursuant to AB 361, the Board’s findings and authorization to continue meeting remotely cannot remain effective 
for more than thirty (30) days.  As such, the Board must reconsider its determination at each of its meetings to 
reauthorize remote meetings until the Board no longer believes remote meetings are necessary. 
 
The attached resolution mirrors the findings made by the Board on November 18, 2021.  Staff believes that these 
findings can be made again.  As discussed in the staff report accompanying the November 18, 2021 resolution, 
the San Mateo County Health Officer’s most recent distancing order requires face coverings to be worn in all 
indoor public settings (Order No. c19-12, dated August 2, 2021).  This face coving order is based on the threat of 
COVID-19 transmission, which is still prevalent.  The face covering mandate issued through Order No. c19-12 
attempts to balance that threat of transmission with the “strategy to support the continued operations of 
businesses, activities, and schools.”  The Order finds that “Universal indoor use of face coverings, also known as 
masking, is the least disruptive and most immediately impactful additional measure to take.” 
 
On December 15, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) issued its own statewide mask 
requirement for anyone in an indoor public place.  CDPH indicated that this measure was necessary due to a 
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recent increase in coronavirus cases.  This Order, which was originally to remain in effect through January 15, 
2022, has now been extended through at least February 15, 2022. 
 
On December 1, 2021, it was announced that the first documented case of the “Omicron” variant of the 
coronavirus in the United States had been discovered in the San Francisco Bay Area.  The Center for Disease 
Control (CDC) notes that the Omicron variant spreads quicker and easier than prior known variants, including the 
prior dominant variant, “Delta.”  In recent weeks, the daily case rate has surged to record levels, with Omicron 
making up well over 90% of those new cases.    
 
Much like the justification for implementing the face covering requirement articulated by the San Mateo County 
Health Officer, continuing to hold remote meetings is one of the least disruptive methods the Board can utilize to 
protect against the ongoing threat of COVID-19 transmission.  COVID-19 spreads easily and quickly through 
airborne droplets, particularly when indoors.  While face coverings can suppress transmission, they cannot 
eliminate the threat.  Conducting meetings remotely allows attendees to fully participate in each meeting without 
requiring that they gather in the same indoor space.  Further, it allows members of public, staff, and members of 
the Board to participate in meetings even if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or are experiencing symptoms 
of COVID-19. 
 
Conclusion 
 
As the California state of emergency in response to COVID-19 remains effective and because the California 
Department of Public Health and San Mateo County Health Officer require face coverings for everyone in indoor 
public locations, staff believes that the Board can make the findings required under AB 361 to continue meeting 
remotely by videoconference.   
 
If the Board approves the attached resolution, the Board, TAC, and all Board subcommittees will continue to hold 
meetings by Zoom videoconference.  Because the Board must reconsider and reaffirm this action at least every 
30 days, similar resolutions will appear on each of the Board’s agendas until the Board can no longer make the 
findings required to continue meeting remotely. 

 
Attachments: 
Resolution 2022-05 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THAT ALL MEETINGS OF THE SBWMA BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS, TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE, AND ALL BOARD-APPOINTED 
SUBCOMMITTEES CONTINUE TO BE HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO 

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(E) 
   

 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic and California remains in a declared state of emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20, temporarily suspending 
certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act to allow local agencies to hold public meetings teleconference; and 
 

WHEREAS, through subsequent Executive Orders, local agencies were able to continue holding public 
meetings by teleconference through September 30, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on an emergency basis, on September 16, 2021, the State adopted AB 361, codified at 
California Government Code Section 54953, which allows local agencies to continue meeting by teleconference 
under certain circumstances and after making certain findings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board of Directors, Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC), and all Board-appointed subcommittees have met by videoconference since March 
2020 and found it to be an effective method of receiving public input, holding deliberations, and conducting the 
general business of the SBWMA; and  
 

WHEREAS, remote meetings held by videoconference, which also allow attendees to participate by 
telephone, allow attendees of the meetings to avoid the risk of potential COVID-19 exposure and allows those that 
may have been exposed or experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 to participate in meetings without posing a threat 
to other attendees; and 
 

WHEREAS, Order No. c19-12 of the San Mateo County Health Officer, which was issued August 2, 2021, 
remains in effect and “directs that face coverings shall be worn, regardless of vaccination status, over the mouth 
and nose, in all indoor public settings…”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Health Officer’s Order No. c19-12 was based on new evidence on the 
B.1.617.2 (Delta) variant of the COVID-19 virus which led the Center for Disease Control (CDC) to recommend face 
coverings for fully-vaccinated persons in indoor public settings and the California Department of Public Health to 
recommend universal masking in indoor public settings; and 
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WHEREAS, on December 1, 2021, it was announced that the first documented case of the “Omicron” 
variant of the coronavirus in the United States had been discovered in the San Francisco Bay Area; and 

 
WHEREAS, in a matter of weeks, Omicron became the dominant variant of COVID-19 and is believed to 

spread quicker and easier than prior known variants, including Delta; and  
 
WHEREAS, early research has shown that vaccinations are less effective in protecting against the Omicron 

variant than prior known variants; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 15, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) issued a statewide 

requirement that everyone in indoor public places wear face coverings, and has now extended that order through 
at least through February 15, 2022, due to the recent increase in coronavirus cases; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 21, 2021, the Board of Directors considered the imminent risk to the health and 

safety of attendees at in-person meetings and the distancing measures required and recommended by Federal, 
State, and local health officials; and 

 
WHEREAS, after such consideration, the Board directed by resolution adopted on October 21, 2021 that 

all meetings of the Board of Directors, TAC, and all Board-appointed subcommittees would continue to be held by 
videoconference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors reconsidered its direction to continue meeting by videoconference on 

November 18, 2021 and, by resolution, directed again that meetings of the Board, TAC, and Board-appointed 
subcommittees continue to be held by videoconference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reconsidered its direction to continue meeting by videoconference 

and finds that meeting by videoconference continues to be necessary due to the ongoing threat of COVID-19. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the SBWMA Board of Directors does find and declare as 
follows: 
 

1. The Board of Directors has reconsidered its determinations made by resolutions dated October 21, 
2021 and November 18, 2021 that meetings of the Board of Directors, TAC, and all Board-
appointed subcommittees should continue to be held by videoconference to allow participation 
remotely; and 

2. The state of emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic continues to directly impact the ability 
of the members to meet safely in person; and 

3. State or local officials continue to impose face coverings in indoor public areas and recommend 
additional measures to promote social distancing; and 

4. Holding meetings in person creates an imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees because, 
as stated in Order No. c19-12 of the San Mateo County Health Officer, “household transmission 
and small gatherings are major drivers of COVID-19 transmission in San Mateo County”; and  

5. Holding remote meetings prevents the possibility of COVID-19 transmission during those meetings 
while allowing those who are at-risk or potentially suffering COVID-19 symptoms to participate in 
meetings safely. 
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NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the SBWMA Board of Directors directs that the 
Board, TAC, and all Board-appointed subcommittees shall hold meetings remotely by 
videoconference/teleconference for at least the next thirty days, at which time, or as soon thereafter as the Board 
shall meet, the Board will review whether this action remains necessary to protect the health and safety of meeting 
attendees.  Any public comment period at any such meeting shall allow comments from members of the public 
attending remotely in the same form and fashion as would be taken during an in-person meeting.  If at any time 
during any such meeting the ability to broadcast the meeting and accept public comments from remote attendees 
is disrupted, the body holding the meeting shall recess until the disruption is resolved or continue the meeting to a 
later date when videoconference/teleconference participation can be restored. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 

County of San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January 2022, by the following vote: 
 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-05 was duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022. 
    
        __________________________ 
        Alicia Aguirre, Chairperson of SBWMA 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 
 
 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton     Menlo Park     
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist.     
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